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THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

& COMPANIES (REGISTRATION) REGULATIONS 2008 (SI 2008/3014)

SCHEDULE 2
A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Regulation 2(b)
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF
Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Each subscriber to this memorandum of association wishes to form a company under the
Companies Act 2006 and agrees to become a member of the company.

Name of each subscriber  Authentication by each subscriber

The Right Reverend Alan Thomas Lawrence Wilson (Bishop of Buckingham)

The Reverend Mary Ann Harwood

Oxford Diocesan Board of Education (by hand of its Director, Mrs Anne Davey)

Department
for Education

Dated 13 July 2012
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13 July 2012

THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF
OXFORD DIOCESAN SCHOOLS TRUST

COMPANY NUMBER: 8143249

as amended by a Special Resolution passed on 5 November 2013

23 August 2013 v5
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THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF

OXFORD DIOCESAN SCHOOLS TRUST

INTERPRETATION
1. Inthese Articles:-

(a) “the Academies" means all the schools referred to in Article 4 and established by
the Company (and “Academy” shall mean any one of those schools);

(b) “Academy Financial Year” means the academic year from 1* of September to 31°
of August of the following year;

(c) “the Articles” means these Articles of Association of the Company;

(d) “Chief Executive Officer” means such person as may be appointed by the
Directors as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company;

(e) “Chief Inspector” means Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Education, Children’s
Services and Skills or his successor;

(f)  “clear days” in relation to the period of a notice means the period excluding the
day when the notice is given or deemed to be given and the day on which it is
given or on which it is to take effect;

(g) “Clerk” means the clerk to the Directors or any other person appointed to perform
the duties of the clerk to the Directors, including a joint, assistant or deputy clerk;

(h) “the Company” means, save as otherwise defined at Article 6.9, the company
intended to be regulated by these Articles and referred to in Article 2;

(i) “Diocese” means the Church of England diocese in which the Academies are
situated;

()] “Diocesan Board of Education” means that body constituted under the Diocesan
Boards of Education Measure 1991 for the Diocese;

(k) “Diocesan Board of Finance” means the Diocesan Board of Finance for the

Diocese;
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(D  "Diocesan Director of Education” means the Director of Education of the

Diocesan Board of Education;

(m) “the Directors” means, save as otherwise defined at Article 6.9, the directors of

the Company (and “Director” means any one of those directors);

(n) “Financial Expert” means an individual, company or firm who is authorised to

give investment advice under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000;

(o) “the LAs” means all the local authorities covering the areas in which the
Academies are situated (and “the LA” shall mean any one of these local

authorities);

(p) “Local Authority Associated Persons” means any person associated with any
local authority within the meaning given in section 69 of the Local Government
and Housing Act 1989;

() “Local Governing Bodies” means the committees appointed pursuant to Articles
100-102 and 104 (and “Local Governing Body” means any one of these

committees);

() “Member” means a member of the Company and someone who as such is

bound by the undertaking contained in Article 8;
(s) “the Memorandum” means the Memorandum of Association of the Company;
(t)y “Office” means the registered office of the Company;

(u) “Parent Directors” means the Directors elected or appointed pursuant to Articles

53 — 56 inclusive;

(v) “Principals" means the head teachers of the Academies (and “Principal” means

any one of these head teachers);

(w) “Principal Regulator” means the body or person appointed as the Principal
Regulator under the Charities Act 2011,

(X) Not used;

(y) “Scheme of Delegation” means an instrument by the Directors delegating such
powers and responsibilities of the Directors as may be appropriate for them to

delegate to the Local Governing Bodies consistently with the Objects;
(z) “the seal” means the common seal of the Company if it has one;
(aa) “Secretary of State” means the Secretary of State for Education or successor;

(bb) Not used;

23 August 2013 v5



(cc)

(dd)

(ee)

(ff)
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“Teacher” means a person employed under a contract of employment or a
contract for services or otherwise engaged to provide his services as a teacher at

one or more Academies;

“Trustees” means those trustees holding the schools’ sites and providing them to

the Academy Trust for use and occupation by the Academies;
“the United Kingdom” means Great Britain and Northern Ireland;

words importing the masculine gender only shall include the feminine gender.
Words importing the singular number shall include the plural number, and vice

versa;

subject as aforesaid, words or expressions contained in these Articles shall,
unless the context requires otherwise, bear the same meaning as in the

Companies Act 2006, as appropriate;

any reference to a statute or statutory provision or measure shall include any
statute or statutory provision or measure which replaces or supersedes such
statute or statutory provision or measure including any modification or

amendment thereto.

2. The Company's hame is Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust (and in this document it is

called “the Company”).

3.  The Company’s registered office is to be situated in England and Wales.

OBJECT

4.  The Company’s object (“the Object”) is specifically restricted to the following:

to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but

without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining,

carrying on, managing and developing Academies which shall offer a broad and

balanced curriculum and which shall include:

(i)

Church of England schools designated as such which shall be conducted in
accordance with the principles, practices and tenets of the Church of England
both generally and in particular in relation to arranging for religious education
and daily acts of worship, and having regard to any advice issued by the

Diocesan Board of Education; and

23 August 2013 v5



(ii)

11
Multi Academy Trust Model for Church of England Schools

other Academies whether with or without a designated religious character; but in
relation to each of the Academies to recognise and support their individual ethos,

whether or not designated Church of England.

5. In furtherance of the Object but not further or otherwise the Company may exercise the

following powers:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

(€)

(f)

(9)

(h)

to draw, make, accept, endorse, discount, execute and issue promissory notes,
bills, cheques and other instruments, and to operate bank accounts in the name

of the Company;

to raise funds and to invite and receive contributions provided that in raising
funds the Company shall not undertake any substantial permanent trading

activities and shall conform to any relevant statutory regulations;

(subject to such further consents as may be required by law or as may be
required from the Trustees as landlords/licensors where this is the case) to

acquire, alter, improve and charge or otherwise dispose of property;

subject to Article 6 below to employ such staff, as are necessary for the proper
pursuit of the Object (including the maintenance of an effective Church of
England ethos in relation to Academies falling within Article 4(i)) and to make all
reasonable and necessary provision for the payments of pensions and

superannuation to staff and their dependants;

to establish or support, whether financially or otherwise, any charitable trusts,

associations or institutions formed for all or any of the Obiject;

to co-operate with other charities, other independent schools, schools
maintained by a local authority, 16-19 Academies, alternative provision
Academies, institutions within the further education sector, voluntary bodies and
statutory authorities operating in furtherance of the Object and to exchange

information and advice with them;

to pay out of funds of the Company the costs, charges and expenses of and

incidental to the formation and registration of the Company;

to establish, maintain, carry on, manage and develop the Academies at locations

to be determined by the Directors;
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() to offer scholarships, exhibitions, prizes and awards to pupils and former pupils,

and otherwise to encourage and assist pupils and former pupils;

() to provide educational facilities and services to students of all ages and the wider

community for the public benefit;

(k) to carry out research into the development and application of new techniques in
education and to their approach to curriculum development and delivery and to
publish the results of such research, and to develop means of benefiting from
application of the experience of industry, commerce, other schools and the

voluntary sector to the education of pupils in academies;

() subject to such consents as may be required from the Trustees or otherwise
required by law and/or by any contract entered into by or on behalf of the
Company, to borrow and raise money for the furtherance of the Object in such

manner and on such security as the Company may think fit;

(m) to deposit or invest any funds of the Company not immediately required for the
furtherance of its object (but to invest only after obtaining such advice from a
financial expert as the Directors consider necessary and having regard to the

suitability of investments and the need for diversification);

(n) to delegate the management of investments to a financial expert, but only on

terms that:

(i) the investment policy is set down in writing for the financial expert by the
Directors;

(i)  every transaction is reported promptly to the Directors;

(i) the performance of the investments is reviewed regularly with the
Directors;

(iv) the Directors are entitled to cancel the delegation arrangement at any time;

(v) the investment policy and the delegation arrangement are reviewed at
least once a year;

(vi) all payments due to the financial expert are on a scale or at a level which is
agreed in advance and are notified promptly to the Directors on receipt;
and

(vii) the financial expert must not do anything outside the powers of the

Directors;
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(0) to arrange for investments or other property of the Company to be held in the
name of a nominee company acting under the control of the Directors or of a
financial expert acting under their instructions, and to pay any reasonable fee

required;

(p) to provide indemnity insurance to Directors and the members of any Local
Governing Body (to the extent necessary) in accordance with, and subject to the
conditions of section 232 to 235 of the Companies Act 2006, section 189 of the
Charities Act 2011 or any other provision of law applicable to charitable

companies and any such indemnity is limited accordingly;

(q) to establish subsidiary companies to carry on any trade or business for the

purpose of raising funds for the Company;

() to do all such other lawful things as are necessary for or are incidental to or
conducive to the achievement of the Object and appropriate to the religious

character of the Academy.

The income and property of the Company shall be applied solely towards the

promotion of the Object.

None of the income or property of the Company may be paid or transferred directly or
indirectly by way of dividend bonus or otherwise by way of profit to any member of the

Company. Nonetheless a Member of the Company who is not also a Director may:
(a) benefit as a beneficiary of the Company;

(b) be paid reasonable and proper remuneration for any goods or services supplied to

the Company;

(c) be paid rent for premises let by the Member of the Company if the amount of the

rent and other terms of the letting are reasonable and proper; and

(d) be paid interest on money lent to the Company at a reasonable and proper rate,
such rate not to exceed 2 per cent per annum below the base lending rate of a UK
clearing bank selected by the Directors, or 0.5%, whichever is the higher.

A Director may benefit from any indemnity insurance purchased at the Company’s
expense to cover the liability of the Directors which by virtue of any rule of law would

otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or breach of trust or
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breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Company: provided that

any such insurance shall not extend to:

() any claim arising from any act or omission which Directors knew to be a breach
of trust or breach of duty or which was committed by the Directors in reckless

disregard to whether it was a breach of trust or breach of duty or not; and,

(i) provided also that any such insurance shall not extend to the costs of any
unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution brought against the Directors in

their capacity as directors of the Company.

Further, this Article does not authorise a Director to benefit from any indemnity
insurance that would be rendered void by any provision of the Companies Act 2006,

the Charities Act 2011 or any other provision of law.

6.4 A company, which has shares listed on a recognised stock exchange and of which any
one Director holds no more than 1% of the issued capital of that company, may
receive fees, remuneration or other benefit in money or money’s worth from the
Company.

6.5 A Director may at the discretion of the Directors be reimbursed from the property of the
Company for reasonable expenses properly incurred by him or her when acting on
behalf of the Company, but excluding expenses in connection with foreign travel.

6.6 No Director may:

(@) buy any goods or services from the Company;

(b) sell goods, services, or any interest in land to the Company;

(c) be employed by, or receive any remuneration from the Company other than the
Chief Executive Officer or Principals whose employment and/or remuneration is
subject to the procedure and conditions in Article 6.8);

(d) receive any other financial benefit from the Company unless:

(i) the payment is permitted by Article 6.7 and the Directors follow the procedure

and observe the conditions set out in Article 6.8; or
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(i)  the Directors obtain the prior written approval of the Charity Commission

and fully comply with any procedures it prescribes.

6.7 Subject to Article 6.8, a Director may:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

receive a benefit from the Company in the capacity of a beneficiary of the

Company;,

be employed by the Company or enter into a contract for the supply of goods or

services to the Company, other than for acting as a Director;

receive interest on money lent to the Company at a reasonable and proper rate
not exceeding 2% per annum below the base rate of a clearing bank to be

selected by the Directors, or 0.5%, whichever is the higher; and

receive rent for premises let by the Director to the Company if the amount of the

rent and the other terms of the lease are reasonable and proper.

6.8 The Company and its Directors may only rely upon the authority provided by Article 6.7

if each of the following conditions is satisfied:

(@)

(b)

(€)

the remuneration or other sums paid to the Director do not exceed an amount

that is reasonable in all the circumstances.

the Director is absent from the part of any meeting at which there is discussion
of:

(i) his or her employment, remuneration, or any matter concerning the

contract, payment or benefit; or

(i)  his or her performance in the employment, or his or her performance of the

contract; or
(i) any proposal to enter into any other contract or arrangement with him or
her or to confer any benefit upon him or her that would be permitted under

Article 6.7; or

(iv) any other matter relating to a payment or the conferring of any benefit

permitted by Article 6.7,

the Director does not vote on any such matter and is not to be counted when
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calculating whether a quorum of Directors is present at the meeting;

(d) save in relation to employing or contracting with the Chief Executive Officer or
Principals the other Directors are satisfied that it is in the interests of the
Company to employ or to contract with that Director rather than with someone
who is not a Director. In reaching that decision the Directors must balance the
advantage of employing a Director against the disadvantages of doing so
(especially the loss of the Director's services as a result of dealing with the

Director’s conflict of interest);
(e) the reason for their decision is recorded by the Directors in the minute book; and

() a majority of the Directors then in office have received no such payments or

benefit.

6.8A The provision in Article 6.6(c) that no Director may be employed by or receive any
remuneration from the Company (other than the Chief Executive Officer or Principals)
does not apply to an employee of the Company who is subsequently elected or
appointed as a Director save that this Article shall only allow such a Director to receive
remuneration or benefit from the Company in his capacity as an employee of the
Company and provided that the procedure as set out in Articles 6.8(b)(i), (ii) and 6.8
(c) is followed.

6.9 In Articles 6.2 - 6.9:
(@) “company” shall include any company in which the Company:

o holds more than 50% of the shares; or

. controls more than 50% of the voting rights attached to the shares; or

° has the right to appoint one or more Directors to the Board of the company;
(b) “Director” shall include any child, stepchild, parent, grandchild, grandparent,

brother, sister or spouse of the Director or any person living with the Director as
his or her partner;

(c) the employment or remuneration of a Director includes the engagement or

remuneration of any firm or company in which the Director is:

(i) apartner,
(i)  an employee;
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(i)  a consultant;

(iv) adirector,;

(v) amember; or

(vi) a shareholder, unless the shares of the company are listed on a
recognised stock exchange and the Director holds less than 1% of the

issued capital.

7.  The liability of the members of the Company is limited.

8. Every Member of the Company undertakes to contribute such amount as may be
required (not exceeding £10) to the Company’s assets if it should be wound up while
he or she is a Member or within one year after he or she ceases to be a Member, for
payment of the Company’'s debts and liabilities before he or she ceases to be a
Member, and of the costs, charges and expenses of winding up, and for the

adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves.

0. If the Company is wound up or dissolved and after all its debts and liabilities (including
any under section 2 of the Academies Act 2010) have been satisfied there remains
any property it shall not be paid to or distributed among the Members of the Company,
but shall be given or transferred to some other charity or charities having objects
similar to the Object which prohibits the distribution of its or their income and property
to an extent at least as great as is imposed on the Company by Article 6 above,
chosen by the Members of the Company at or before the time of dissolution and if that
cannot be done then to some other charitable object.

10. No alteration or addition shall be made to or in the provisions of the Memorandum
and/or Articles without the written consent of the Trustees and the Diocesan Board of

Education.?

11. No alteration or addition shall be made to or in the provisions of the Articles which
would have the effect (a) that the Company would cease to be a company to which
section 60 of the Companies Act 2006 applies; or (b) that the Company would cease to

be a charity.

! The requirement for the consent of the Trustees and the Diocesan Board of Education (whether
they are members or otherwise) corresponds to the requirement for maintained schools that the
consent of these bodies be obtained prior to a change to the Instrument of Government under the
Schools Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations 2007.
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MEMBERS
12. The Members of the Company shall comprise:
(@) the signatories to the Memorandum, who shall be:

(i) the Diocesan Board of Education acting corporately by hand of one of its

directors; and

(i) two individual members of the Diocesan Board of Education nominated by it

for the purpose;
(b) up to 5 other persons who may be appointed by Diocesan Board of Education;
(c) the chairman of the Directors; and
(d) any person appointed under Article 16.

13. Each of the persons entitled to appoint Members in Article 12 shall have the right from
time to time by written notice delivered to the Office to remove any Member appointed
by them and to appoint a replacement Member to fill a vacancy whether resulting from

such removal or otherwise.
14. If any of the persons entitled to appoint Members in Article 12:

(@) inthe case of an individual, die or become legally incapacitated;

(b) in the case of a corporate entity, cease to exist and are not replaced by a

successor institution; or

(c) becomes insolvent or makes any arrangement or composition with their creditors

generally,

their right to appoint Members under these Articles shall vest in the remaining
Members.

15. Membership will terminate automatically if:

(@) a Member (which is a corporate entity) ceases to exist and is not replaced by a

successor institution;

(b) a Member (who is an individual) dies or becomes incapable by reason of illness
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or injury of managing and administering his or her own affairs; or

(c) a Member becomes insolvent or makes any arrangement or composition with that

Member’s creditors generally.

The Members with the written consent of the Diocesan Board of Education may agree
by passing a special resolution in writing to appoint such additional Members as they
think fit and may agree by passing a special resolution in writing to remove any such
additional Members provided that such appointment or removal is in the interests of

the Company.

Every person nominated to be a Member of the Company shall either sign a written

consent to become a Member or sign the register of Members on becoming a Member.

Any Member may resign provided that after such resignation the number of Members
is not less than three. A Member shall cease to be one immediately on the receipt by
the Company of a notice in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to remove
him under Articles 13 or 16 provided that no such notice shall take effect when the
number of Members is less than three unless it contains or is accompanied by the

appointment of a replacement Member.

GENERAL MEETINGS

19.

20.

The Company shall hold an Annual General Meeting each year in addition to any other
meetings in that year, and shall specify the meeting as such in the notices calling it;
and not more than fifteen months shall elapse between the date of one Annual
General Meeting of the Company and that of the next. Provided that so long as the
Company holds its first Annual General Meeting within eighteen months of its
incorporation, it need not hold it in the year of its incorporation or in the following year.
The Annual General Meeting shall be held at such time and place as the Directors
shall appoint. All general meetings other than Annual General Meetings shall be

called General Meetings.

The Directors may call general meetings and, on the requisition of Members pursuant
to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, shall forthwith proceed to convene a
general meeting in accordance with that Act. If there are not within the United
Kingdom sufficient Directors to call a general meeting, any Director or any Member of

the Company may call a general meeting.
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NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

21.

22.

General meetings shall be called by at least fourteen clear days’ notice but a general
meeting may be called by shorter notice if it is so agreed by a majority in number of
Members having a right to attend and vote and together representing not less than

90% of the total voting rights at that meeting.

The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the general nature of
the business to be transacted and, in the case of an Annual General Meeting, shall
specify the meeting as such. The notice shall also state that the Member is entitled to

appoint a proxy.
The notice shall be given to all the Members, to the Directors and auditors.

The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of notice of a
meeting by, any person entitled to receive notice shall not invalidate the proceedings

at that meeting.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

No business shall be transacted at any meeting unless a quorum is present. A
Member counts towards the quorum by being present either in person or by proxy.
Two persons entitled to vote upon the business to be transacted, each being a
Member or a proxy of a Member or a duly authorised representative of a Member

organisation shall constitute a quorum.

If a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting,
or if during a meeting a quorum ceases to be present, the meeting shall stand
adjourned to the same day in the next week at the same time and place or to such
time and place as the Directors may determine.

If present, the chairman, if any, of the Directors shall preside as chairman of the
meeting
If the chairman of the Directors is not present within fifteen minutes after the time

appointed for holding the meeting, the Members present and entitled to vote shall

choose one of their number to be chairman.

A Director shall, notwithstanding that he is not a Member, be entitled to attend and

speak at any general meeting.
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28. The chairman may, with the consent of a majority of the Members at a meeting at which

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

a quorum is present (and shall if so directed by the meeting), adjourn the meeting from
time to time and from place to place, but no business shall be transacted at any
adjourned meeting other than the business which might properly have been transacted
at the meeting had the adjournment not taken place. When a meeting is adjourned for
fourteen days or more, at least seven clear days’ notice shall be given specifying the
time and place of the adjourned meeting and the general nature of the business to be

transacted. Otherwise it shall not be necessary to give any such notice.

A resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands unless
before, or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands, a poll is duly
demanded. Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, a poll may be

demanded:

(@) by the chairman; or
(b) by at least two Members having the right to vote at the meeting; or,

(c) by a Member or Members representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting

rights of all the Members having the right to vote at the meeting.

Unless a poll is duly demanded a declaration by the chairman that a resolution has
been carried or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost, or not carried
by a particular majority and an entry to that effect in the minutes of the meeting shall
be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the

votes recorded in favour of or against such resolution.

The demand for a poll may be withdrawn, before the poll is taken, but only with the
consent of the chairman. The withdrawal of a demand for a poll shall not invalidate the

result of a show of hands declared before the demand for the poll was made.

A poll shall be taken as the chairman directs and he may appoint scrutineers (who
need not be Members) and fix a time, date and place for declaring the results. The
result of the poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll

was demanded.

A poll demanded on the election of the chairman or on a question of adjournment shall
be taken immediately. A poll demanded on any other question shall be taken either
immediately or at such time, date and place as the chairman directs not being more
than thirty days after the poll is demanded. The demand for a poll shall not prevent

continuance of a meeting for the transaction of any business other than the question
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on which the poll is demanded. If a poll is demanded before the declaration of the
result of a show of hands and the demand is duly withdrawn, the meeting shall

continue as if the demand had not been made.

No notice need be given of a poll not taken immediately if the time and place at which
it is to be taken are announced at the meeting at which it is demanded. In other cases
at least seven clear days’ notice shall be given specifying the time and place at which

the poll is to be taken.

A resolution in writing agreed by such number of members as required if it had been
proposed at a general meeting shall be as effectual as if it had been passed at a
general meeting duly convened and held provided that a copy of the proposed
resolution has been sent to every Member. The resolution may consist of several

instruments in the like form each agreed by one or more Members.

VOTES OF MEMBERS

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

On the show of hands every Member present in person shall have one vote. On a poll

every Member present in person or by proxy shall have one vote.
Not used.

No Member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all moneys then
payable by him to the Company have been paid.

No objections shall be raised to the qualification of any person to vote at any general
meeting except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is
tendered, and every vote not disallowed at the meeting shall be valid. Any objection
made in due time shall be referred to the chairman whose decision shall be final and

conclusive.

An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing, signed by or on behalf of the
appointer and shall be in the following form (or in a form as near thereto as

circumstances allow or in any other form which is usual or which the Directors may

approve) -
“We, ........ , of ... , being a Member/Members of the above named
Company, hereby appoint ...... of ...... , or in his absence, ........ of ....... as

my/our proxy to attend, speak and vote in my/our name[s] and on my/our behalf

at the annual general meeting/ general meeting of the Company to be held on

23 August 2013 v5



23
Multi Academy Trust Model for Church of England Schools

..... 20[ ], and at any adjournment thereof.
Signed on ..... 200 I

41. Where it is desired to afford Members an opportunity of instructing the proxy how he
shall act the instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the following form (or in a form
as near thereto as circumstances allow or in any other form which is usual or which the

Directors may approve) -

“I'Ve, ....... ,of ....... , being a Member/Members of the above-named Company,
hereby appoint .... of ....... , or in his absence, ..... of ...... , as my/our proxy to
attend, speak and vote in my/our name[s] and on my/our behalf at the annual
general meeting/ general meeting of the Company, to be held on .... 20[ ], and

at any adjournment thereof.
This form is to be used in respect of the resolutions mentioned below as follows:
Resolution No. 1 *for * against
Resolution No. 2 *for * against.
* Strike out whichever is not desired.

Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy may vote as he thinks fit or abstain from voting,
Signedon .... 20[ |

42. The instrument appointing a proxy and any authority under which it is signed or a copy
of such authority certified by a notary or in some other way approved by the Members

may:

(@) be deposited at the office or at such other place within the United Kingdom as is
specified in the notice convening the meeting or in any instrument of proxy sent
out by the Company in relation to the meeting not less than 48 hours before the
time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in

the instrument proposes to vote, or

(b) in the case of a poll taken more than 48 hours after it is demanded, be deposited
as aforesaid after the poll has been demanded and not less than 24 hours before

the time appointed for the taking of the poll; or
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(c) where the poll is not taken forthwith but is taken not more than 48 hours after it
was demanded, be delivered at the meeting at which the poll was demanded to

the chairman or to the Clerk or to any Director,

and an instrument of proxy which is not deposited or delivered in a manner so

permitted shall be invalid.

A vote given or poll demanded by proxy or by the duly authorised representative of a
corporation shall be valid notwithstanding the previous determination of the authority of
the person voting or demanding a poll unless notice of the determination was received
by the Company at the office or at such other place at which the instrument of proxy
was duly deposited before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at
which the vote given or the poll demanded or (or in the case of a poll taken otherwise
than on the same day as the meeting or adjourned meeting) the time appointed for

taking the poll.

44. Any organisation which is a Member of the Company may by resolution of its board of

directors or other governing body authorise such person as it thinks fit to act as its
representative at any meeting of the Company, and the person so authorised shall be
entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of the organisation which he represents
as that organisation could exercise if it were an individual Member of the Company.

DIRECTORS

45.

The number of Directors shall be not less than three, but (unless otherwise determined
by ordinary resolution) shall not be subject to any maximum.

46. Subject to Articles 48-49, the Company shall have the following Directors:

47,

(@) No fewerthan 5 and up to 12 Directors, appointed under Article 50;
(b) The Chief Executive Officer;
(c) The Diocesan Director of Education; and

(d) Parent Directors if appointed under Articles 53-56 in the event that no provision
is made for parent representatives on Local Governing Bodies under Article
101A.

The Company may also have any Co-opted Director appointed under Article 58.
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The first Directors shall be those persons named in the statement delivered pursuant

to sections 9 and 12 of the Companies Act 2006.

Future Directors shall be appointed or elected, as the case may be, under these
Articles. Where it is not possible for such a Director to be appointed or elected due to
the fact that an Academy has not yet been established, then the relevant Article or part

thereof shall not apply.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

50.

50A.

50B.

The Members shall appoint a minimum of 5 and a maximum of 12 Directors.
Not used.

Not used.

51. Not used.

52. Not used.

PARENT DIRECTORS

53.

54.

54A.

55.

In circumstances where the Directors have not appointed Local Governing Bodies in
respect of the Academies as envisaged in Article 101A there shall be a minimum of 2
Parent Directors and otherwise such number as the Members shall decide who shall
be appointed or elected in accordance with Articles 54 - 56.

Parent Directors and parent members of the Local Governing Bodies or Advisory
Bodies shall be elected by the parents of registered pupils at one or more of the
Academies and each must be a parent at the time when he is elected.

Notwithstanding Article 53, if no parents put themselves forward for election the
number of Parent Directors and parent members of the Local Governing Bodies or
Advisory Bodies required shall be made up by Parent Directors and parent members
appointed by the Directors.

The Directors shall make all necessary arrangements for, and determine all other
matters relating to, an election of the Parent Directors or parent members of Local
Governing Bodies or Advisory Bodies, including any question of whether a person is a
parent of a registered pupil at one of the Academies. Any election of the Parent
Directors or parent members of the Local Governing Bodies or Advisory Bodies which
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is contested shall be held by secret ballot.

56. In appointing a Parent Director or parent member of a Local Governing Body or
Advisory Body the Directors shall appoint a person who is the parent of a registered
pupil at an Academy; or where it is not reasonably practical to do so, a person who is

the parent of a child of compulsory school age.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND DIOCESAN DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION

57. The Chief Executive Officer shall be a Director for as long as he remains in office as

such.

57A. The Diocesan Director of Education shall be a Director for as long as he remains in

office as such.
CO-OPTED DIRECTORS

58. The Directors appointed under Article 50 with the consent of the Diocesan Board of
Education may appoint up to 2 Co-opted Directors for such term (not exceeding four
years) and otherwise upon such conditions as they shall think fit. A ‘Co-opted Director’
means a person who is appointed to be a Director by being Co-opted by Directors who
have not themselves been so appointed. The Directors may not co-opt an employee
of the Company as a Co-opted Director if thereby the number of Directors who are
employees of the Company would exceed one third of the total number of Directors
including the Chief Executive Officer.

59 - 63. Not used.
TERM OF OFFICE

64. The term of office for any Director (other than Co-opted Directors under Article 58)
shall be four years, save that this time limit shall not apply to the Chief Executive
Officer or the Diocesan Director of Education. Subject to remaining eligible to be a

particular type of Director, any Director may be re-appointed or re-elected.
RESIGNATION AND REMOVAL

65. A Director shall cease to hold office if he resigns his office by notice to the Company
(but only if at least three Directors will remain in office when the notice of resignation is
to take effect), save that this article shall not apply in respect of the Diocesan Director

of Education.
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A Director shall cease to hold office if he is removed by the person or persons who

appointed him. This Article does not apply in respect of a Parent Director.

Where a Director resigns his office or is removed from office, the Director or, where he
is removed from office, those removing him, shall give written notice thereof to the
Clerk.

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

No person shall be qualified to be a Director unless he is aged 18 or over at the date of
his election or appointment. No current pupil or current student of any of the

Academies shall be a Director.

A Director shall cease to hold office if he becomes incapable by reason of illness or

injury of managing or administering his own affairs.

A Director shall cease to hold office if he is absent without the permission of the
Directors from all their meetings held within a period of six months and the Directors

resolve that his office be vacated.
A person shall be disqualified from holding or continuing to hold office as a Director if:

(@) his estate has been sequestrated and the sequestration has not been
discharged, annulled or reduced; or

(b) he is the subject of a bankruptcy restrictions order or an interim order.

A person shall be disqualified from holding or continuing to hold office as a Director at
any time when he is subject to a disqualification order or a disqualification undertaking
under the Company Directors Disqualification Act 1986 or to an order made under
section 429(2)(b) of the Insolvency Act 1986 (failure to pay under county court

administration order).

A Director shall cease to hold office if he ceases to be a Director by virtue of any
provision in the Companies Act 2006 or is disqualified from acting as a trustee by
virtue of section 178 of the Charities Act 2011 (or any statutory re-enactment or

modification of that provision).

A person shall be disqualified from holding or continuing to hold office as a Director if
he has been removed from the office of charity trustee or trustee for a charity by an

order made by the Charity Commission or the High Court on the grounds of any
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misconduct or mismanagement in the administration of the charity for which he was
responsible or to which he was privy, or which he by his conduct contributed to or

facilitated.
Not used.
Not used.

A person shall be disqualified from holding or continuing to hold office as a Director
where he has, at any time, been convicted of any criminal offence, excluding any that
have been spent under the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 as amended, and
excluding any offence for which the maximum sentence is a fine or a lesser sentence
except where a person has been convicted of any offence which falls under section
178 of the Charities Act 2011.

After the first Academy has opened, a person shall be disqualified from holding or
continuing to hold office as a Director if he has not provided to the chairman of the
Directors a criminal records certificate at an enhanced disclosure level under section
113B of the Palice Act 1997. In the event that the certificate discloses any information
which would in the opinion of either the chairman or the Chief Executive Officer
confirm their unsuitability to work with children that person shall be disqualified. If a
dispute arises as to whether a person shall be disqualified, a referral shall be made to
the Secretary of State to determine the matter. The determination of the Secretary of
State shall be final.

Where, by virtue of these Articles a person becomes disqualified from holding, or
continuing to hold office as a Director; and he is, or is proposed, to become such a
Director, he shall upon becoming so disqualified give written notice of that fact to the
Clerk.

Articles 68 to 74, Articles 77 to 79 and Articles 97 to 98 also apply to any member of
any committee of the Directors, including a Local Governing Body, who is not a

Director.

CLERK TO THE DIRECTORS

81.

The Clerk shall be appointed by the Directors for such term, at such remuneration and
upon such conditions as they may think fit; and any Clerk so appointed may be

removed by them. The Clerk shall not be a Director, or a Principal. Notwithstanding

23 August 2013 v5



29
Multi Academy Trust Model for Church of England Schools

this Article, the Directors may, where the Clerk fails to attend a meeting of theirs,
appoint any one of their number or any other person to act as Clerk for the purposes of

that meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN OF THE DIRECTORS

82.

83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

88.

The Directors shall for each school year elect a chairman and a vice-chairman from
among their number. A Director who is employed by the Company shall not be eligible

for election as chairman or vice-chairman.

Subiject to Article 84, the chairman or vice-chairman shall hold office as such until his

successor has been elected in accordance with Article 85.

The chairman or vice-chairman may at any time resign his office by giving notice in

writing to the Clerk. The chairman or vice-chairman shall cease to hold office if:
(a) he ceases to be a Director;

(b) heis employed by the Company;

(c) he is removed from office in accordance with these Articles; or

(d) in the case of the vice-chairman, he is elected in accordance with these Articles
to fill a vacancy in the office of chairman.

Where by reason of any of the matters referred to in Article 84, a vacancy arises in the
office of chairman or vice-chairman, the Directors shall at their next meeting elect one

of their number to fill that vacancy.

Where the chairman is absent from any meeting or there is at the time a vacancy in
the office of the chairman, the vice-chairman shall act as the chair for the purposes of
the meeting.

Where in the circumstances referred to in Article 86 the vice-chairman is also absent
from the meeting or there is at the time a vacancy in the office of vice-chairman, the
Directors shall elect one of their number to act as a chairman for the purposes of that
meeting, provided that the Director elected shall not be a person who is employed by

the Company.

The Clerk shall act as chairman during that part of any meeting at which the chairman
is elected.
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Any election of the chairman or vice-chairman which is contested shall be held by

secret ballot.

The Directors may remove the chairman or vice-chairman from office in accordance

with these Articles.

A resolution to remove the chairman or vice-chairman from office which is passed at a

meeting of the Directors shall not have effect unless-

(i) itis confirmed by a resolution passed at a second meeting of the Directors held

not less than fourteen days after the first meeting; and

(i)  the matter of the chairman’s or vice-chairman’s removal from office is specified

as an item of business on the agenda for each of those meetings.

Before the Directors resolve at the relevant meeting on whether to confirm the
resolution to remove the chairman or vice-chairman from office, the Director or
Directors proposing his removal shall at that meeting state their reasons for doing so
and the chairman or vice-chairman shall be given an opportunity to make a statement

in response.

POWERS OF DIRECTORS

93.

94.

Subject to provisions of the Companies Act 2006, the Articles and to any directions
given by special resolution, the business of the Company shall be managed by the
Directors who may exercise all the powers of the Company. No alteration of the
Articles and no such direction shall invalidate any prior act of the Directors which
would have been valid if that alteration had not been made or that direction had not
been given. The powers given by this Article shall not be limited by any special power
given to the Directors by the Articles and a meeting of Directors at which a quorum is

present may exercise all the powers exercisable by the Directors.

In addition to all powers hereby expressly conferred upon them and without detracting
from the generality of their powers under the Articles the Directors shall have the

following powers, namely:

(@) to expend the funds of the Company in such manner as they shall consider most
beneficial for the achievement of the Object and to invest in the name of the
Company such part of the funds as they may see fit and to direct the sale or

transposition of any such investments and to expend the proceeds of any such
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sale in furtherance of the Object;
(b) to enter into contracts on behalf of the Company.

In the exercise of their powers and functions, the Directors may consider any advice

given by the Chief Executive Officer and any other executive officer.

Any bank account in which any money of the Company is deposited shall be operated
by the Directors in the name of the Company. All cheques and orders for the payment
of money from such an account shall be signed by at least two signatories authorised

by the Directors.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

97.

98.

Any Director who has or can have any direct or indirect duty or personal interest
(including but not limited to any Personal Financial Interest) which conflicts or may
conflict with his duties as a Director shall disclose that fact to the Directors as soon as
he becomes aware of it. A Director must absent himself from any discussions of the
Directors in which it is possible that a conflict will arise between his duty to act solely in
the interests of the Company and any duty or personal interest (including but not
limited to any Personal Financial Interest).

For the purpose of Article 97, a Director has a Personal Financial Interest in the
employment or remuneration of, or the provision of any other benefit to, that Director
as permitted by and as defined by Articles 6.5 - 6.9.

THE MINUTES

99.

The minutes of the proceedings of a meeting of the Directors shall be drawn up and
entered into a book kept for the purpose by the person acting as Clerk for the
purposes of the meeting; and shall be signed (subject to the approval of the Directors)
at the same or next subsequent meeting by the person acting as chairman thereof.

The minutes shall include a record of:
(a) all appointments of officers made by the Directors; and

(b) all proceedings at meetings of the Company and of the Directors and of
committees of Directors including the names of the Directors present at each

such meeting.
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COMMITTEES

100.

101.

Subject to these Atrticles, the Directors:

(@) may appoint separate committees to be known as Local Governing Bodies for

each Academy; and
(b) may establish any other committee.

Subject to these Articles, the constitution, membership and proceedings of any
committee shall be determined by the Directors. The establishment, terms of
reference, constitution and membership of any committee of the Directors shall be
reviewed at least once in every twelve months. The membership of any committee of
the Directors may include persons who are not Directors, provided that (with the
exception of the Local Governing Bodies) a majority of members of any such
committee shall be Directors. Except in the case of a Local Governing Body, no vote
on any matter shall be taken at a meeting of a committee of the Directors unless the

majority of members of the committee present are Directors.

101A. The Directors shall ensure that any Local Governing Body shall include at least 2

102.

103.

elected representatives of the parents of pupils attending the relevant Academy.

The power of delegation exercised under Article 105 in relation to the establishment of
a Local Governing Body for an Academy shall be by way of Scheme of Delegation.
The first Scheme of Delegation to be put in place for an Academy following
incorporation may follow the Scheme of Delegation attached to these Articles.

Not used.

104. The functions and proceedings of the Local Governing Bodies shall be subject to

regulations made by the Directors from time to time.

DELEGATION

105. The Directors may delegate to any Director, committee (including any Local Governing

106.

Body), the Chief Executive Officer or any other holder of an executive office, such of
their powers or functions as they consider desirable to be exercised by them. Any such
delegation shall be made subject to any conditions the Directors may impose, and may

be revoked or altered.

Where any power or function of the Directors has been exercised by any committee
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(including any Local Governing Body), any Director, the Chief Executive Officer or any
other holder of an executive office, that person or committee shall report to the
Directors in respect of any action taken or decision made with respect to the exercise
of that power or function at the meeting of the Directors immediately following the

taking of the action or the making of the decision.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, PRINCIPALS AND STAFF

107. The Directors, (after consultation with the Diocesan Board of Education and having

made use of any relevant powers under section 124A of the School Standards and
Framework Act 1998 or under the relevant supplemental funding agreement in respect
of each Academy) shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer and the Principals of the
Academies. The Directors may delegate such powers and functions as they consider
are required by the Chief Executive Officer and Principals for the internal organisation,
management and control of the Academies (including the implementation of all policies
approved by the Directors and for the direction of the teaching and curriculum at the

Academies).

107A. In appointing staff the Directors will have regard where relevant to their powers under

section 124A of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 or to the powers
provided to them under the relevant supplemental funding agreement in respect of
each Academy and to their power where relevant to declare a Genuine Occupational
Requirement for non-teaching appointments where they believe this to be justified.

MEETINGS OF THE DIRECTORS

108.

109.

110.

Subject to these Articles, the Directors may regulate their proceedings as they think fit.

The Directors shall hold at least three meetings in every school year. Meetings of the
Directors shall be convened by the Clerk. In exercising his functions under this Article

the Clerk shall comply with any direction:
(a) given by the Directors; or

(b) given by the chairman of the Directors or, in his absence or where there is a
vacancy in the office of chairman, the vice-chairman of the Directors, so far as

such direction is not inconsistent with any direction given as mentioned in (a).

Any three Directors may, by notice in writing given to the Clerk, requisition a meeting

of the Directors; and it shall be the duty of the Clerk to convene such a meeting as
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soon as is reasonably practicable.

111. Each Director shall be given at least seven clear days before the date of a meeting:

112.

113.

114.

115.

116.

(i) notice in writing thereof, signed by the Clerk, and sent to each Director at the

address provided by each Director from time to time; and
(i) a copy of the agenda for the meeting,

provided that where the chairman or, in his absence or where there is a vacancy in the
office of chairman, the vice-chairman, so determines on the ground that there are
matters demanding urgent consideration, it shall be sufficient if the written notice of a
meeting, and the copy of the agenda thereof are given within such shorter period as he

directs.

The convening of a meeting and the proceedings conducted thereat shall not be
invalidated by reason of any individual not having received written notice of the

meeting or a copy of the agenda thereof.

A resolution to rescind or vary a resolution carried at a previous meeting of the
Directors shall not be proposed at a meeting of the Directors unless the consideration
of the rescission or variation of the previous resolution is a specific item of business on

the agenda for that meeting.
A meeting of the Directors shall be terminated forthwith if:
(a) the Directors so resolve; or

(b) the number of Directors present ceases to constitute a quorum for a meeting of
the Directors in accordance with Article 117, subject to Article 119.

Where in accordance with Article 114 a meeting is not held or is terminated before all
the matters specified as items of business on the agenda for the meeting have been
disposed of, a further meeting shall be convened by the Clerk as soon as is
reasonably practicable, but in any event within seven days of the date on which the

meeting was originally to be held or was so terminated.

Where the Directors resolve in accordance with Article 114 to adjourn a meeting
before all the items of business on the agenda have been disposed of, the Directors
shall before doing so determine the time and date at which a further meeting is to be

held for the purposes of completing the consideration of those items, and they shall
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direct the Clerk to convene a meeting accordingly.

117. Subject to Article 119 the quorum for a meeting of the Directors, and any vote on any
matter thereat, shall be any three Directors, or, where greater, any one third (rounded
up to a whole number) of the total number of Directors holding office at the date of the

meeting.

118. The Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancies in their number, but, if the
numbers of Directors is less than the number fixed as the quorum, the continuing
Directors may act only for the purpose of filling vacancies or of calling a general

meeting.
119. The quorum for the purposes of:
() appointing a parent Director under Articles 56;
(i) any vote on the removal of a Director in accordance with Article 66; and

(i) any vote on the removal of the chairman of the Directors in accordance with
Article 90,

shall be any two-thirds (rounded up to a whole number) of the persons who are at the

time Directors entitled to vote on those respective matters.

120. Subject to these Articles, every question to be decided at a meeting of the Directors
shall be determined by a majority of the votes of the Directors present and voting on
the question. Every Director shall have one vote.

121. Subject to Articles 117 - 119, where there is an equal division of votes, the chairman of
the meeting shall have a casting vote in addition to any other vote he may have.

122. The proceedings of the Directors shall not be invalidated by
(a) anyvacancy among their number; or
(b) any defect in the election, appointment or nomination of any Director.

123. A resolution in writing, signed by all the Directors entitled to receive notice of a meeting
of Directors or of a committee of Directors, shall be valid and effective as if it had been
passed at a meeting of Directors or (as the case may be) a committee of Directors duly

convened and held. Such a resolution may consist of several documents in the same
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form, each signed by one or more of the Directors.

124. Subiject to Article 125, the Directors shall ensure that a copy of:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

the agenda for every meeting of the Directors;

the draft minutes of every such meeting, if they have been approved by the

person acting as chairman of that meeting;
the signed minutes of every such meeting; and

any report, document or other paper considered at any such meeting,

are, as soon as is reasonably practicable, made available at every Academy to

persons wishing to inspect them.

125. There may be excluded from any item required to be made available in pursuance of

Article 124, any material relating to:

(@)

(b)

(€)

a named teacher or other person employed, or proposed to be employed, at any

Academy;
a named pupil at, or candidate for admission to, any Academy; and

any matter which, by reason of its nature, the Directors are satisfied should

remain confidential.

126. Any Director shall be able to participate in meetings of the Directors by telephone or

video conference provided that:

(@)

(b)

he has given notice of his intention to do so detailing the telephone number on
which he can be reached and/or appropriate details of the video conference suite
from which he shall be taking part at the time of the meeting at least 48 hours
before the meeting; and,

the Directors have access to the appropriate equipment if after all reasonable
efforts it does not prove possible for the person to participate by telephone or
video conference the meeting may still proceed with its business provided it is

otherwise quorate.

PATRONS AND HONORARY OFFICERS
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127. The Directors may from time to time appoint any person whether or not a Member of
the Company to be a patron of the Company or to hold any honorary office and may

determine for what period he is to hold such office.
THE SEAL

128. The seal, if any, shall only be used by the authority of the Directors or of a committee
of Directors authorised by the Directors. The Directors may determine who shall sign
any instrument to which the seal is affixed and unless otherwise so determined it shall

be signed by a Director and by the Clerk or by a second Director.
ACCOUNTS

129. Accounts shall be prepared in accordance with the relevant Statement of
Recommended Practice as if the Company was a non-exempt charity and Parts 15
and 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and shall file these with the Secretary of State and

the Principal Regulator by 31 December for each Academy Financial Year.
ANNUAL REPORT

130. The Directors shall prepare its Annual Report in accordance with the Statement of
Recommended Practice as if the Company was a non-exempt charity and shall file
these with the Secretary of State and the Principal Regulator by 31 December each
Academy Financial Year.

ANNUAL RETURN

131. The Directors shall comply with their obligations under Part 24 of the Companies Act
2006 (or any statutory re-enactment or modification of that Act) with regard to the
preparation of an annual return to the Registrar of Companies and in accordance with
the Statement of Recommended Practice as if the Company was a non-exempt charity
and to the Secretary of State and the Principal Regulator by 31 December each

Academy Financial Year.
NOTICES

132. Any notice to be given to or by any person pursuant to these Articles (other than a
notice calling a meeting of the directors) shall be in writing or shall be given using
electronic communications to an address for the time being notified for that purpose to

the person giving the notice. In these Articles, “address” in relation to electronic
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communications, includes a number or address used for the purposes of such

communications.

A notice may be given by the Company to a Member either personally or by sending it
by post in a prepaid envelope addressed to the Member at his registered address or
by leaving it at that address or by giving it using electronic communications to an
address for the time being notified to the Company by the Member. A Member whose
registered address is not within the United Kingdom and who gives to the Company an
address within the United Kingdom at which notices may be given to him, or an
address to which notices may be sent using electronic communications, shall be
entitled to have notices given to him at that address, but otherwise no such Member

shall be entitled to receive any notice from the Company.

A Member present, either in person or by proxy, at any meeting of the Company shall
be deemed to have received notice of the meeting and, where necessary, of the

purposes for which it was called.

Proof that an envelope containing a notice was properly addressed, prepaid and
posted shall be conclusive evidence that the notice was given. Proof that a notice
contained in an electronic communication was sent in accordance with guidance
issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators shall be conclusive
evidence that the notice was given. A notice shall be deemed to be given at the
expiration of 48 hours after the envelope containing it was posted or, in the case of a
notice contained in an electronic communication, at the expiration of 48 hours after the

time it was sent.

INDEMNITY

136.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 6.3 every Director or
other officer or auditor of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against any liability incurred by him in that capacity in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in favour or in which
he is acquitted or in connection with any application in which relief is granted to him by
the court from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in

relation to the affairs of the Company.

RULES

137.

The Directors may from time to time make such rules or bye laws as they may deem
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necessary or expedient or convenient for the proper conduct and management of the
Company, and in particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing,

they may by such rules or bye laws regulate:

(@) the setting aside of the whole or any part or parts of the Company’s premises at

any particular time or times or for any particular purpose or purposes;

(b) the procedure at general meetings and meetings of the Directors and
committees of the Directors and meetings of the Local Governing Bodies in so

far as such procedure is not regulated by the Articles; and

(c) generally, all such matters as are commonly the subject matter of company

rules.

The Company in general meeting shall have power to alter, add or to repeal the rules
or bye laws but only with the consent of the Diocesan Board of Education. Provided
that no rule or bye law shall be inconsistent with, or shall affect or repeal anything

contained in the Articles.

AVOIDING INFLUENCED COMPANY STATUS

139.

140.

141.

Notwithstanding the number of Members from time to time, the maximum aggregate
number of votes exercisable by Local Authority Associated Persons shall never
exceed 19.9% of the total number of votes exercisable by Members in general meeting
and the votes of the other Members having a right to vote at the meeting will be
increased on a pro-rata basis.

No person who is a Local Authority Associated Person may be appointed as a Director
if, once the appointment had taken effect, the number of Directors who are Local
Authority Associated Persons would represent 20% or more of the total number of
Directors. Upon any resolution put to the Directors, the maximum aggregate number of
votes exercisable by any Directors who are Local Authority Associated Persons shall
represent a maximum of 19.9% of the total number of votes cast by the Directors on
such a resolution and the votes of the other Directors having a right to vote at the

meeting will be increased on a pro-rata basis.

No person who is a Local Authority Associated Person is eligible to be appointed to the
office of Director unless his appointment to such office is authorised by the local

authority to which he is associated.

23 August 2013 v5
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142. If at the time of either his becoming a Member of the Company or his first appointment
to office as a Director any Member or Director was not a Local Authority Associated
Person but later becomes so during his membership or tenure as a Director he shall
be deemed to have immediately resigned his membership and/or resigned from his

office as a Director as the case may be.

143. If at any time the number of Directors or Members who are also Local Authority
Associated Persons would (but for Articles 139 - 142 inclusive) represent 20% or
more of the total number of Directors or Members (as the case may be) then a
sufficient number of the Directors or Members (as the case may be) who are Local
Authority Associated Persons shall be deemed to have resigned as Directors or
Members (as the case may be) immediately before the occurrence of such an event to
ensure that at all times the number of such Directors or Members (as the case may be)
is never equal to or greater than 20% of the total number of Directors or Members (as
the case may be). Directors or Members (as the case may be) who are Local Authority
Associated Persons shall be deemed to have resigned in order of their appointment
date the most recently appointed resigning first.

144. The Members will each notify the Company and each other if at any time they believe
that the Company or any of its subsidiaries has become subject to the influence of a
local authority (as described in section 69 of the Local Government and Housing Act
1989).

23 August 2013 v5
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Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 August 2019

The Trustees (who are also the Directors of the Company under company law) present their Annual Report
together with the audited financial statements of the Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust {the “Trust”) for the period
from 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019. The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees’ report
and a Directors’ report, including a Strategic Report under company law.

At 31 August 2019, the Trust operated 33 primary academies in the area covered by the Oxford Diocese (which
covers Berkshire, Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Milton Keynes), with a combined pupil capacity of 7,226
and 6,130 pupils currently enrolled based on the lanuary 2019 school census. An additional school, Wootton-
by-Woodstock CE Primary joined on 1% October 2018.

Structure, governance and management
CONSTITUTION

The Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust (the “Trust”) is a private company limited by guarantee with no share capital
and is an exempt charity. The Trust's memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing
documents of the Trust. Members of the Trust are the Diocesan Board of Education {acting corporately), the
subscribers to the memorandum who were two individual Members of the Diocesan Board of Education and
there may be up to five other persons appointed by the Diocesan Board of Education. In addition, the Members,
with the consent of the Diocesan Board of Education, may agree unanimously to appoint additional Members.

Details of the Trustees who served during the period are included in the Reference and Administrative Details
on Page 1.

The Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust was incorporated on 13 July 2012, It is a Multi-Academy Trust and has in
place a Master Funding Agreement with the Department for Education and separate Supplemental Funding
Agreements in respect of each school within the Trust.

There were thirty-two academies within the Trust at 31 August 2018, in order of joining, as follows:

" John Henry Newman C of E Academy, Littlemore
Grove C of E Primary School
The Hendreds C of E Primary School
St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Cowley
Wheatley C of E Primary School
St Peter’s C of E Middle School, Old Windsor
Burchetts Green C of E Infants School
St Luke’s C of E Primary School, Maidenhead
St Peter’s C of E Primary School, Alvescot
St Christopher’s C of E Primary School, Langford
The Blake, C of E Primary School, Witney
Bampton C of E Primary School
North Leigh C of E Primary School
Burford Primary School
The Batt C of E Primary School, Witney
St Mary’s C of E Infants School, Witney
Brize Norton Primary School
Holyport C of E Primary School
Dr South's C of E Primary School, Islip
Tackley C of E Primary School
Datchet St Mary’s C of £ Primary Academy
Leafield C of E Primary School
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Wroxton C of E Primary School

Dr Radcliffe's C of E Primary School, Steeple Aston
South Moreton Primary School

Deddington C of E Primary School

Kidmore End C of E Primary School

North Hinksey C of E Primary School

St Mary’s C of E Primary School, Banbury
Northbourne C of E Primary School

St Nicholas C of E Infants School, Wallingford

Fir Tree Junior School, Wallingford

® & ¢ & & 0 o ¢ o 0

During the 2018/9 year another school joined the Trust:
¢  Wootton-by-Woodstock C of E Primary School 1% October 2018

MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each Member of the Trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Trust in the event of it being wound up
while they are a Member, or within one year after they cease to be a Member, such amount as may be required,
not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a Member.

TRUSTEES' INDEMNITIES

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, every Trustee or other officer or auditor of the Trust is
indemnified out of the assets of the Trust against any liability incurred by him/her in that capacity in defending
any proceeding whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in favour or in which relief is granted to
him/her by the court from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty of trust in relation to the affairs of the
Trust.

The Trust has opted into the Department of Education’s Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), an alternative to
insurance where UK government funds cover insurable losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees’ and officers’ indemnity element
from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Trust’s principal activity during the period was the provision of schools both with and without a designated
Church of England religious character, offering a broad and balanced curriculum. The schools serve children
aged from 3 to 14.

METHOD OF RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT OR ELECTION OF TRUSTEES

Up to twelve Trustees are appointed to the Board by the Members. In addition, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
and the Diocesan Director of Education (DDE) are Trustees. The Trustees, with the consent of the Diocesan
Board of Education, may appoint up to two Trustees for such term up to a maximum of four years and upon such
conditions as they shall think fit. Trustees {(with the exception of co-opted and ex officio Trustees, including the
CEO) are appointed for a period of four years but are eligible for reappointment provided the necessary criteria
are met in each case.

Each school within the Trust has an advisory body, as required by the Master Funding Agreement. These are
called Local Governing Bodies {"LGBs") and their functions are set out in a scheme of delegation by the Trust.
Members of the LGBs are appointed primarily by the Trustees (with some exceptions allowing for the election
of parent representatives etc.} and are accountable to the Trustees accordingly. The Trustees are also entitled
to sit on the LGBs in an ex officio capacity.
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The Trust has an Executive Committee with a remit to scrutinise the skill set of existing Trustees of the Board
and to identify potential new Trustees as appropriate, to recommend to Members for appointment. Members
consider the recommendations, taking the skill set of existing Trustees into account, and a full induction process
is put into place once the appointment is confirmed.

The skills and experience of existing Trustees are regularly recorded and audited. In addition, committees of the
Board have co-opted members from LGBs.

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ADOPTED FOR THE INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF TRUSTEES

As part of the Induction process, all Trustees are provided with various documents to support their
understanding of the workings of the Trust. These would include:

e Trust's governing documents (i.e. the Memorandum and Articles of Association) as well as access to the
Master Funding Agreement and Supplemental Funding Agreements for the academies;

s other documents such as minutes, accounts, budgets and other documents relating to the Trust;

s relevant documentation issued by the Department for Education, ESFA, the Charity Commission and their
professional advisers as necessary are provided to enable the Trustees to meet their legal obligations and
follow best practice in respect of their role as Trustees (and Company Directors,) for example the
Academies Financial Handbook.

All Trustees {both new and existing) are encouraged to make visits to the schools within the Trust, and to attend
leadership briefings and the leadership conferences, so they can meet headteachers and local governing body
members in both a formal and an informal context. They also have access to Governorhub {an online service for
governors and MAT Trustees for communication and coordination) and are offered regular opportunities for
training, both internal and external to help further develop their skills and understanding of the Trust. In
addition, the Board holds strategy days to which Members are invited.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Board of Trustees governs the activities of the Trust and oversees the work of each school’s LGB. The
structure consists of the Board and seven sub-committees;
e Finance;
Ethos and Governance;
Education, Quality Standards and Impact;
Pay and Personnel;
Estates Health and Safety (including Safeguarding);
e Audit; and
e Executive

The Trustees are also ultimately responsible for the strategic direction of the Trust ensuring that its aims are met
and its ethos maintained. Specifically, this includes setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget,
monitoring the Trust’s financial performance and educational outcomes. The Trustees are also responsible for
making major decisions about the direction of the Trust.

As briefly outlined above, the LGBs oversee the work and outcomes of individual schools within the Trust. These
LGBs comprise a mix of local people including staff, parents, members of the local faith community, where
appropriate, and others appointed by the Trust for their skills and experience. They act as a critical support to
the Headteacher and the school. They are responsible for ensuring high standards of education and financial
effectiveness; they review the overall impact of each school within the community it serves and are responsible
for ensuring the Trust’s ethos and vision are upheld.

The Senior Leadership Team of the Trust was restructured during the accounting period, and now comprises the
CEO, the Deputy CEO/Lead Education Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Operations Manager, the HR
Manager and the Principal Advisor. They lead and manage the Trust, setting strategy and implementing policy
in conjunction with the Board of Trustees generally. Headteachers and Deputy Headteachers, as employees of
the Trust, lead and manage the individual schools.
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ARRANGEMENTS FOR SETTING PAY AND REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The Trust is concerned to ensure that it recruits and retains high quality employees whilst ensuring value for
maney.

For centrally employed staff, roles are benchmarked externally to ensure consistency and objectivity and further
internal controls are applied by the HR and finance teams, supported by Trustees. Similar to the situation in
schools, a limited element of incremental pay progression is available to centrally employed staff subject to the
delivery of agreed performance objectives.

For employees based in schools, responsibility for setting levels of pay are delegated to the local school, subject
to adherence to nationally agreed conditions, e.g. The School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions Document.
Additional scrutiny is provided by the Trust through its direct involvement in senior leadership appointments.

TRADE UNION FACILITY TIME

The number of employees who were relevant union officials during the relevant period is 0. The percentage of
time, and the percentage of the pay bill spent on facility time is therefore 0%.

CONNECTED ORGANISATIONS, INCLUDING RELATED PARTY/ TRANSACTIONS

The Trustees are appointed in accordance with the skills and experience each can offer to the Trust. Some are
drawn from other organisations in the Diocesan family, local employers or other organisations which from time
to time have dealings with the Trust in the course of their work. All transactions between any Trustee’s
employers and/or organisations and the Trust were properly procured through an open and fair process and
carried out at arm’s length. All material transactions were undertaken at not more than cost. A register of each
Trustee’s business interests is also maintained.

During the period, the Trust obtained a number of essential support services from the Oxford Diocesan Board
of Education {a corporate Member of the Trust) at a cost of £211,857 (2017/2018: £346,702). These services
included education advisers, management of capital building projects and other support services which are
procured in order to obtain the benefit of economies of scale from a larger organisation.

- The Trust is aware of the Academies Financial Handbook requirements for related party transactions, including
notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and the need to obtain their approval
where required. These regulations have been adhered to throughout this accounting period.

Full details of related party transactions can be found at note 26.

Objectives and Activities

OBIJECTS AND AIMS

The Trust’s object is specifically restricted to:

Advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing schools which
shall offer a broad and balanced curriculum and which shall include:

a) Church of England schools designated as such which shall be conducted in accordance with the
principles, practices and tenets of the Church of England both generally and in particular in relation to
arranging for religious education and daily acts of worship {as required by the relevant Funding
Agreement) and having regard to any advice issued by the Diocesan Board of Education; and

b) Other academies whether with or without a designated religious character; but in relation to each of
the academies to recognise and support their individual ethos, whether or not designated Church of
England.
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OBIJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND ACTIVITIES

At the heart of the vision for schools in the Trust is a belief in educational excellence. It is the strategic objective
of the Trust to create a family of outstanding schools. This covers a range of potential members of the family:
good schools looking for a group option {including schools from particular geographical areas which may be
converting together,) schools which are graded by Ofsted as “Requires Improvement,” schools which require
more ‘hands on’ sponsorship and brand-new schools.

The Trust’s vision for education centres on our sense of a community which works for the common good. The
Trust’s key values are identified as:

o Inclusivity: Our schools embrace equality of opportunity and a whole inclusive approach to
education. We believe every person matters.

e Empowerment: A fully functioning community is one where each person knows their own value
and potential. Our job as educators is to enable that potential to flourish; to create
a culture where children can be nurtured to be the best they can be. We believe
this is best done by empowering each other to contribute the best we have to give.

e Community: Communities are important and flourish best when relationships are strong. We
believe our schools and the people in them are a vital part of many different
communities, all of which can be enriched as we work together.

¢ Abundant We want our schools to be places where children are loved, nurtured and learn to
Living: live well. We believe all people should be enabled to fulfil their whole potential,
not just professionally and academically, but also creatively, morally and

spiritually.
e Service: Our schools are outward-facing communities where we all learn to serve others

and contribute to the common good.

PUBLIC BENEFIT

As set out in the objects in the Articles of Association, the Trust is dedicated to advancing education for the
public benefit and in so doing it serves pupils, staff, parents and their local communities by providing academies
with the highest levels of academic rigour and pastoral care, with opportunities provided for spiritual growth
and intellectual enquiry.

The Trust seeks to live out our common vision for the common good by establishing and running schools, which
themselves become communities where gifts can be shared, where the emphasis is on what can be contributed
rather than what can be received, and where each is given according to need. The Trust’s schools are places
where children and young people can learn the value of service and of human endeavour, where they can be
sure they are valued for who they are and where they can be supported to be the best they can be.

The Trustees have complied with their duty under the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to the guidance
on public benefit published by the Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties as charity Trustees.
They have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Trust’s aims and objectives and in planning future
activities.
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Strategic Report

ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE
The Trust welcomed one new school during the accounting period. This was:

*  Wootton-by-Woodstock C of E Primary School {48 pupils)

Academic performance in our schools rose once again this year and we expect the validated data to indicate
that our performance as a whole is at or above the national averages.

e Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) — Outcomes in 2019 show that approximately three quarters of
ODST's pupils reached a Good Level of Development (GLD) by the end of their foundation stage.

* Y1 Phonics Check: In 2019, the percentage of children meeting the expected standard, rose again this
year to over 83%

® KS1 SATS: the percentage of 7-year-old children meeting the expected standard at the end of KS1
remained pleasingly above the national average this year, with reading at 79%, writing at 71% and
mathematics at 77%.

e KS2: The percentage of ODST pupils achieving the expected standard in reading, writing and
mathematics (combined) rose for the third year in a row and brings ODST schools broadly in line with
the national average, with a comparable improvement in progress scores. 13% of ODST pupils achieved
the higher standard in 2019, compared to the national average of 10.5%

Eight Trust schools were subject to inspection by Ofsted during the period, with four schools being judged above
their previous grade, and the remaining four retaining their “Good” ratings. Of our 33 schools 97% have an
Ofsted grade of Good or above.

In January 2019, ODST was the first multi academy trust to be reviewed under Ofsted’s new summary evaluation
framework, receiving positive feedback and being described as a “listening Trust”. ODST was praised in many
areas with emphasis on empowerment for individual schools, a strong culture of safeguarding, solid governance
by Trustees to ensure oversight of finance and steering the Trust skilfully through a challenging economic
climate, and identifying collaboration between schools, particularly within the first local hubs. The full findings
are available on our website.

In order to improve the service from the centre to individual schools, and ensure we have sufficient capacity to
absorb new schools, we successfully completed a restructuring of the central team, thus allowing us to place
more leadership emphasis on school improvement. In January 2019 we recruited a Deputy Chief Executive
Officer/ Lead Education Officer and a further 1.0 FTE School Improvement Adviser.

In addition, we recruited an Operations Manager who is responsible for health, safety and compliance across
the Trust securing the day-to-day running of the organisation. This role has enabled an improved focus on health
and safety management and improvements in risk management have been embedded, with further focus to be
made on business continuity processes and planning.

Our hub structure has been further developed during this period, with regular hub meetings being organised
and attended by headteachers and central staff. This has allowed us to focus on local issues and interests and
supports further collaboration and joint working across schools, sharing best practice and resources accordingly.
Links between Trustees and hubs have been strengthened through school visits, attendance at strategic briefings
and leadership conferences attended by both headteachers and governors.

Key areas for improvement are identified across the Trust, and core and bespoke CPD programmes for teachers,
leaders and governors have been effectively used in order to raise standards, as identified in the Trust
improvement plan. Expertise has been used more extensively to support staff and leaders (e.g. moderation,
coaching and improving teaching and learning.) An ODST middle leadership programme has further increased
capacity for peer to peer support. Regular leadership conferences and training for governors and leaders have
increased challenge and support across the Trust.



51

Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust
Page 9

GOING CONCERN

Based on the budget and cash flow, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Trust and the schools
currently within it have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For
this reason, the Trustees continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting
Policies in note 1 to the financial statements.

The Balance Sheet also recognises a £16,548,000 {2018: £10,572,000) defined benefit pension scheme liability
as required by the relevant accounting standards. This liability arises from the deficit in the Local Government
Pension Scheme ("LGPS") that is attributable to the Trust. The Trust is not currently required to make
accelerated payments to meet this liability, but, were arrangements to change, the Trust would have difficulty
in making such payments without its public funding being adjusted to meet this liability and the Trust would
then expect that cost to be covered by its public funding alongside all other reasonable costs of the education
it provides. The Trustees, in any case, have noted that the Government has provided a guarantee that in the
event of a school closure, any outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education.

In judging therefore whether the Trust is a going concern, the Trustees note that at the end of the financial
period, whilst the total funds of the Trust stood at £429,040 deficit (2018: £4,844,308 as restated), the more
relevant figure is the net current assets of the Trust {(which exclude the fixed assets and the defined benefit
pension scheme liability) of £4,394,141 (2018: £3,643,872).

The Trustees are pleased to report that they believe the Trust is in good financial health and is an active going
concern. They base this on the evidence of an operating cashflow surplus, cash balance at year end of
£5,383,422, achieving a balanced budget in 2018/19 and the setting of a balanced budget for 2019/20. The
finance team regularly manage and update a rolling 12-month cash flow forecast, which supports this
assessment.

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

As well as monitoring educational improvement the Board also monitor other key performance indicators.

In terms of key financial indicators, the Board has carefully monitored the operational financial position
" throughout the year by means of monthly management reporting. An annual surplus of 1.57%, on this basis,
was achieved compared to a budgeted deficit of 0.11% for 2018/19. The balance of funds held at the year-end
was equivalent to approximately 1.3 months of operational expenditure compared to the target set of 1.5
months of operational expenditure.

The Trustees’ medium-term aim is to balance the Trust's budget in year and to build sufficient reserves to
protect its schools against the financial impact of unplanned costs such as urgent and unforeseen capital
repairs. However, they are also mindful that this must be balanced by the responsibility to use the public funds
delegated to them for the benefit of the pupils currently on roll in the Trust's schools, and to ensure that all
balances held, whether by the Trust itself or by its schools, have a clearly identifiable, transparent and
documented purpose.

The Trust's Funding Agreement is not subject to a specific carry forward limit on the amount of GAG funding.
One financial performance indicator is the level of reserves held at the balance sheet date and, in particular,
the amount of GAG funding carried forward at the balance sheet date. At 31 August 2019, the balance of the
GAG Restricted Fund was £328,136 (2018: £476,948).

Staffing costs are another key performance indicator for the Academy Trust and the percentage of total staff
costs to total educational grant funding (being GAG funded plus other operating educational grants from the
EFSA and/or Local Authority) for the year was 84.2% (2018: 81.4%), while the percentage of staff costs to total
costs (excluding depreciation and LGPS FRS102 pension cost charges) was 74% (2018: 72%).
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After adjusting for the transfer of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) deficits inherited on
conversion and the further FRS102 adjustments to the LGPS deficit in the period, the Trust made a deficit for
the year on its restricted general funds of £825,706 (2018: deficit of £676,784). This deficit was then funded
via a transfer of funds from the Trust’s unrestricted funds of £418,837, thereby giving a surplus carried forward
on the restricted general funds, excluding the pension reserve, of £941,857. The surplus consists substantially
of educational grants received in the year ended 31 August 2019. The expenditure that will be funded by these
grants falls largely in the current year, although some may be held over until the following year if the Trust’s
plans require it.

Financial review

REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

The Trustees approved an overall budget for the period from 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019. The Trust
monitors finances on a regular basis to ensure budgets are achieved. It also ensures that measures are in place
to verify that all funds and grants are used for the purposes for which they were applied for or given, and to
ensure the ongoing viability of the Trust and its schools.

The Trust received income into its Unrestricted Fund, Restricted General Funds and Fixed Asset Fund during
the year ended 31 August 2019. While the Statement of Financial Activities sets out the income and
expenditure of these various funds for the year, this includes a number of one-off items of income and
expenditure associated with those schools that joined the Trust during the year as well as FRS102 pension costs
adjustments and depreciation charges.

Operational Result 2019 2018
Net expenditure in Statement of Financial Activities £(1,466,346) £(407,256)
Less transfer from Local Authority on conversion £(36,342) £(1,790,936)
Capital grants income £(2,333,665) £(1,411,140)
Improvements to property owned by church land trustees occupied by , .
ODST treated as grant expenditure £1,986,513 £1,507,731
Depreciation £250,908 £631,245
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions £1,823,000 £1,401,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance costs £304,000 £310,000
Total Operational Surplus £528,068 £240,644

ODST has not undertaken any material fundraising activities during the year ended 31 August 2019.

Restricted General Fund

The majority of the Trust’s income was received through Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) recurrent
revenue grants into the Restricted General Fund, the use of which is restricted to the Trust’s charitable
activities, being its educational operations. General Restricted Fund income for the year was £29,245,909
(2017/2018: £25,853,739); expenditure against these funds was £32,240,615 (2017/2018: £29,755,523), giving
a restricted revenue fund deficit for the year of £2,994,706 (2017/2018: deficit of £3,901,784) before transfers
to the Restricted Fixed Asset Fund and actuarial gains and losses on the defined benefit pension scheme. This
deficit includes net defined benefit pension scheme liabilities transferred to the Trust from the schools that
joined the Trust during the year of £42,000 (2018: £1,514,000) and a further pension cost adjustment under
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FRS102 of £2,127,000 (2018 £1,711,000). Excluding these pension scheme liabilities and adjustments, the
deficit on the General Restricted Fund for the year was £825,706 (2018: deficit of £676,784).

Unrestricted Funds

Income received into the Unrestricted Fund was £2,913,532 (2018: £2,948,337), of which £62,613 (2018:
£469,095) related to funds inherited from the Local Authorities on conversion. Expenditure against the fund
was £1,497,145 (2018: £1,561,814) for the period, giving an Unrestricted Fund surplus for the year of
£1,416,387 (2018: £1,386,523).

Restricted Fixed Asset Fund

The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance is reduced by the annual depreciation charge over the expected useful
life of the assets concerned in line with the Trust’s depreciation policy and capital expenditure treated as grants
to Site Trustees at church schools. Income received into the fund, including the value of the assets transferred
from the schools that have joined the Trust this year was £2,349,394 (2018: £4,246,981 as restated). Thereis a
£123,084 (2018: £2,765,530 surplus as restated) Restricted Fixed Asset Fund period end surplus after transfers
between funds.

The total fund balances as at 31 August 2019 were deficit £429,040 (2018: £4,844,306 as restated). This
comprises £2,740,053 (2018: £1,742,503) in Unrestricted Funds, £15,606,143 deficit (2018: deficit of
£9,212,163) in Restricted General Funds (after accounting for defined benefit pension scheme deficit of
£16,548,000 (2018: £10,572,000), and £12,437,050 (2018: £12,313,966 as restated) in Restricted Fixed Asset
Funds.

The Trust’s assets were predominantly used for providing education to school pupils and for extended services.

The net book value of the Trust’s tangible fixed assets was £11,724,819 (2018: £11,772,434 as restated) at 31
August 2019 and the movement in this account is detailed in note 13 to the financial statements. The majority
of this is represented by the value of the assets transferred to the Trust from the schools joining the Trust since
its incorporation.

The Trust occupies land and buildings which are provided to it and owned by various land trustees ('the Site
Trustees'}. The Trust occupies this land and buildings under the terms of Church Land Supplemental Agreements
between the Oxford Diocesan Board of Education, the Site Trustees and the Trust, which provide the Trust with
the right to use the land and buildings of the schools for an indefinite period, subject to a 2-year termination
notice period, which amounts to a mere licence. The Trustees continue to consider that prudence requires the
exclusion from the balance sheet of land and buildings that are not beneficially owned. An enhanced disclosure
has been given in the note 13 of the financial statements.

In the previous financial year, on conversion the land and buildings occupied by Fir Tree Junior School, were
assigned to the Academy Trust under 125-year leases. The estimated fair value of the land and buildings utilised
in the previous year’s financial statements differ significantly to the valuation report received from Montagu
Evans in the current year. Therefore, management and Trustees consider it appropriate to make a prior period
adjustment to match the fair value assigned in the valuation certificate.

The Trust also has 125-year leases from Oxfordshire County Council and the Royal Borough of Windsor and
Maidenhead for the playing fields of the various schools, which were transferred to the Trust on conversion.

During the year the Trust received valuations, from Montagu Evans LLP (land valuers for the DFE), for all the
schools that had converted up to 31 August 2019. For the first time, these valuations included a separate
estimate of the value of playing fields which indicates that the value of playing fields is negligible in comparison
to the vafue of the main site. Therefore, a prior year adjustment has been made in order to reduce the value of
playing fields to nil and remove the related depreciation charge.

Cash in hand at 31 August 2019 was £5,383,422 (2018: £4,882,028).
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FINANCIAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Our financial objectives include ensuring that every school within the Trust and the Trust’s central administration
set and maintain viable budgets to ensure fong term financial stability of the Trust. Budget plans for the Trust’s
central activities are planned on a three-year rolling basis and are monitored and amended to ensure continuing
viability under changing circumstances.

Budget plans for schools within the Trust are monitored and amended in consultation with the Chief Financial
Officer to ensure viability over a three-year rolling timescale, taking into account changes in funding levels
arising from pupil number changes or other funding factors. Cash flow is monitored monthly at a Trust and
individual school level. An internal Financial Procedures Manual has been published and issued to the Trust’s
schools which requires compliance with procedures designed to manage and protect the Trust’s funds and
ensure that they are authorised at appropriate levels and used appropriately.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board of Trustees has a risk management process to identify and monitor those risks faced by the Trust.
A risk register is in place and reviewed regularly.

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed, especially in the
operational areas, such as in relation to teaching, health and safety, safeguarding and school trips, and in
relation to the control of finances and strategic development of the Trust. They have introduced systems,
including operational procedures and internal financial controls in order to minimise risk and have agreed
a Risk Management Strategy and Risk Management Plan, which incorporates a Risk Register. Where
significant financial risk still remains, the Trustees have ensured the Academy Trust has adequate insurance
cover in place. The Risk Management Plan is constantly reviewed in light of any new information and
formally reviewed annually.

The Trust is a member of the risk protection arrangement (RPA) which is provided by the Department of
Education (DfE) for academies and free schools. The RPA is a voluntary arrangement and is an alternative to
insurance through which the cost of risks that materialise will be covered by government funds.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Trust are identified as being:

School Standards

The continuing success and reputation of the Trust is predicated on continuing to improve outcomes for children
and young people, and to enable all our pupils to make progress in their learning.

To ensure that we achieve our aims, the Trustees ensure that they themselves have sufficient skills and
experience to hold the Trust to account; we ensure that the central school improvement function is well
resourced both by officers and an appropriate revenue budget and that its effectiveness is monitored both in
detail at committee level and at the full Board. We encourage Trustees to know and visit schools.

We ensure that pupil outcomes are at the heart of all decision making and we set the highest expectations. We
have robust systems, high quality staff and mechanisms for direct invention should this be needed. Trustees
monitor standards using a range of soft and more formal measures. The support, training and development of
current and future leaders is also a key activity, and Trustees work to plan for the succession of key posts where
possible.

Finances

Trustees understand that the Trust’s effectiveness is ultimately limited by its funding. We are almost wholly
reliant on government funding through the ESFA. Trustees recognise the importance of a flexible and dynamic
approach to budgeting to be able to respond to unexpected local events, changes to government policy or
practice, and to develop in the most effective way to make the greatest difference. We also recognise there is
no assurance that government funding levels will continue on the same terms or at the same level. We mitigate
risk by working to build up small surpluses when possible at both local and central budget levels, and to analyse
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costs carefully at all times, to ensure value for money; taking advantage of the economies of scale possible in a
large and growing Trust, whilst empowering local management of delegated funds to encourage careful
husbandry in individual cases. Due diligence is completed on each school applying to join the Trust, to ensure
no school joins needing funds the Trust cannot provide, and strong financial controls, using an integrated finance
package, are in place to ensure existing schools are supported with proper budget monitoring. Trustees regularly
review central staffing levels as the Trust grows to ensure central finance staffing remains sufficient to support
schools effectively. Trustees also ensure insurance arrangements are in place.

There are a series of controls in place to minimise the risk of fraud or financial mismanagement at a transactional
level; each school is required to adhere to the processes outlined in the Financial Procedures Manual and the
central team actively check this is complied with when visiting school sites. This activity is reported regularly to
the Finance committee. Regular training is provided to finance staff to keep them up-to-date and develop their
skills.

Health & Safety and Safeguarding Risks

Trustees continue to ensure the maintenance of high standards in the area of selection and monitoring of staff,
maintenance of single central records, the setting of policies and operation of procedures in the area of
safeguarding and child protection and take both legal and HR advice regularly as appropriate.

The physical safety and suitability of sites is monitored annually and Trustees ensure the appropriate follow-up
actions are carried out should any causes for concern be identified. Capital funding decisions are made mindful
of the need to minimise risk in this area. Contingency and emergency plans are in place and regularly reviewed
for a number of eventualities.

RESERVES POLICY

The Trust’s budget plan has been developed to ensure that reserves are maintained within the reserve policy
guidelines agreed with the Finance Committee and Board. Reserves are maintained to provide an appropriate
level of working capital, to invest appropriately in infrastructure for the future and to provide a contingency
against unforeseen cost and liabilities that might arise. The level of reserves held will be reviewed annually by
the Board of Trustees to ensure that it is adequate but not excessive. It is assessed that in the medium-term
cash reserves should be developed to equate to one to three months of budgeted operating expenditure. At
the year-end reserves were equal to 1.9 months (2018: 1.9 months) of budgeted operating expenditure.

The Trust also proposes to look at setting aside reserves to enable it to support schools which have unexpected
and exceptional needs. This will be considered as part an on-going budget review process.

INVESTMENTS POLICY

The Trust has no investments other than balances held in current accounts at Lloyds bank for the Trust itself and
its schools. We do not anticipate having sufficient surplus funds for investment other than balances in the
current account. Trustees will continue to monitor the situation closely and will develop a formal investment
policy if and when necessary. At that time full consideration will be given to the extent to which social and
ethical considerations will influence investment decisions.

Plans for future periods

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Following a year of consolidating our position as an effective, stable organisation, we plan for a small number of
new schools to join the Trust during 2019-20. In addition, we consider ourselves to be in a position to sponsor
a school in need.

In order to ensure the long-term sustainability of our schools, we intend to strengthen our hub model further
and identify options to share both staff and resources where appropriate to allow for collaboration, efficient
financial management and additional support, especially for our very small schools.
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We intend to strengthen support for the professional development of all our staff, both teaching and non-
teaching, and intend to develop our CPD offer in furtherance of this aim, to include providing training for
governors as well as newly qualified teachers (NQTSs).

As the Trust continues to expand both the number of schools it serves and the level of support it offers from
the central team to those schools, we need to increase our central team’s office space. Plans are in place to
operate from two sites in the future — Church House in Kidlington and Community of St Mary the Virgin

(CSMV) in Wantage, building on the relationship already established with the Community of St Mary the Virgin.

Following a successful review of the MAT by Ofsted, improved outcomes and Ofsted judgements (97% of schools
graded as Good or Outstanding) we are in a position to individually tailor our school improvement offer to
schools to enable a more bespoke and flexible programme for each individual school.

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS

Neither the Trust nor its Trustees are acting as custodian trustee on behalf of others.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each of the persons who are Trustees at the time when this Trustees' Report is approved has confirmed that:

¢ so far as each Trustee is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Trust's auditor is
unaware, and

» that each Trustee has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as Trustees in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Trust's auditor is aware
of that information.

AUDITOR

Haysmacintyre LLP continue to be appointed as auditor to the charitable Trust in accordance with section 487(2)
of the Companies Act 2006.

This report, incorporating the Strategic Report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees on 9 December

Y71

Mrs K M Winrow
Chair of the Board of Trustees
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Governance Statement

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Charitable Trust has adopted a scheme of governance
approved by the Secretary of State for Education. The scheme of governance specifies, amongst other things,

the criteria for appointing local governors and that the curriculum should comply with the substance of the
national curriculum.

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As the Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that the Trust has an effective and
appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting
to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

GOVERNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Trustees' Responsibilities Statement. The Board of Trustees has formally met 5 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustees Meetings Attended Out of a Possible
Mr S Barber

Sir C Booth

Dr P Chadwick

Rev’d Canon B D Clover
Mrs F Craig

Rev'd Dr M Daffern
Mrs J A Dellar

Ms J Fageant

The Rt Rev'd C Fletcher
Mrs J Moriarty

Mr C Wheaton

Mr P Sanderson

Mr T Wilson

Mrs K M Winrow
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Governance Reviews

The Finance Committee is a committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to review the Trust's
financial position closely and to provide delegated strategic financial direction.

The role of the Finance Committee includes preparing and approving annual budgets, monitoring financial
performance against the budget, reviewing delegated authorities, ensuring all transactions are conducted in
accordance with good practice as directed by the Charity Commission and the ESFA, to ensure best value is
achieved in all financial transactions and to receive and {where relevant) respond to annual audit reports on the
Trust and its use of public funds.
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Attendance at Finance Committee meetings in the year was as follows:

Members Meetings Attended Out of a Possible
Sir C Booth 4 5
Mrs J A Dellar 5 5
Mr C Wheaton 5 5
Mrs K M Winrow 5 5
Mr M York 3 3

The role of the Audit Committee includes overview of actions taken to mitigate the Trust’s major risks and to
review the Trust’s system of internal control.

The Audit Committee is a committee of the Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to maintain an oversight of the
Trust’s governance, risk management, internal control and value for money framework. It reports its findings
annually to the Board of Trustees and the Accounting Officer as a critical elements of the Trust’s annual reporting
requirements.

Attendance at Audit Committee meetings in the year was as follows:

Members Meetings Attended Out of a Possible
Ms S Appleby 2 2
Sir C Booth 1 2
Mr R Ireson 2 2
Mrs A Jestico 1 2
Mrs K M Winrow 2 2

Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including
the use of benchmarking data where available.

The Accounting Officer for the Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year in many ways
including:

¢ Ongoing review of a wide range of deals including energy, utilities, ICT, printers, copiers and stationery
supplies. This enables the Trust to develop a supplier framework that offers the best value for money
deals within our schools.

e Sharing of best practices within the schools in the Trust to ensure that the current procedures, processes
and systems are used to maximum efficiency.

¢ Use of benchmarking data within the Trust, and that available on DfE website, to compare spend in key
areas and identify efficiencies where ever possible.

During this accounting period the Operations Manager has reviewed key contracts for value for money and
identified procurement areas to optimise efficiency and effectiveness for our schools to ensure resources are
released and targeted to achieve improved pupil outcomes.
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THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in the Trust for the year 1 September 2018
to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant
risks, that has been in place for the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it includes:

+ comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

s regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the

forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

identification and management of risks;

external judgements of the MAT by Ofsted and Regional Schools Commissioners.

. & 0 o o

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and undertaken a review of
the options available. The decision has been taken to carry out this function via the central finance team. This
rolling programme will be implemented in 2020/21 and will be monitored and reviewed by the Finance
Committee. As per the guidance contained in the Academies Financial Handbook 2019 peer reviews will be
carried out as part of the internal scrutiny process.

The external auditor undertook a range of checks, including site visits to a sample of schools, to look at the
operation of controls in individual schools. No major control issues were identified. However, the work did
identify improvements which could be made to the control system and these are being implemented by the
Finance Committee and management.

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the regular monitoring reports including monthly management accounts

the work of the audit committee and finance committee

the work of the external auditors

the work of other outside agencies

the financial management and governance self-assessment process

the work of the finance and operations team within the Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

e & o & o o



60

Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust
Page 18

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Audit Committee and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 9 December 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

/fw\»Q %

Mrs K M Winrow Mrs J A Dellar
Chair of the Board of Trustees CEO and Accounting Officer
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Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting Officer of Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the ODST
Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding received by the academy trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration |
have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

I confirm that the Board of Trustees and | are able to identify any material, irregular or improper use of funds by
the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding
agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

W

Mrs } A Dellar
CEO and Accounting Officer

Date: 9 December 2019
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Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities

The Trustees {(who are also Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report {including the Strategic Report) and the financial statements
in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency,
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
law the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
Trustees are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2018 to 2019;

» state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

* make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Trust applies financial and
other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management.
They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes
intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the Board of Trustees on 9" December 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Yndinn )

Mrs KM Winrow
Chair of the Board of Trustees
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of the Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust for the year ended 31 August
2019 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and
the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019
issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31 August 2019 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As explained more fully in the Trustees' responsibilities statement, the Trustees {who are also directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and for such internal control as the trustees
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with I1SAs {(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust
(continued)

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs {UK) require us to
report to you where:

* the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

* the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the charitable company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

OTHER INFORMATION

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Trustees’ Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

¢ the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report (which includes the strategic report and the
directors’ report prepared for the purposes of company law) for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the strategic report and the directors’ report included within the Trustees’ Annual Report have been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ Annual Report (which
incorporates the strategic report and the directors’ report).

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ the charitable company has not kept adequate accounting records, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

s the charitable company’s financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

e certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust
(continued)

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
charitable company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the charitable company and the charitable company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

- € st

Kathryn Burton {Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Haysmacintyre LLP, Statutory Auditor
10 Queen Street Place

London

EC4R 1AG

9 December 2019
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Oxford
Diocesan Schools Trust and the Education & Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 4 September 2019 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019,
we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by the Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust during the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019
have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to the Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter, Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust
and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Oxford Diocesan Schools
Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust’s accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of the Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 31 August 2012, and the Academies Financial
Handbook extant from 1 September 2018, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion included:

* areview of internal control policies and procedures implemented by the Academy and an evaluation
of their design and effectiveness to understand how the Academy has complied with the framework
of authorities;
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* areview of the minutes of meetings of the Trustees, relevant sub-committees and Local Governing
Bodies and other evidence made available to us, relevant to our consideration of regularity; and

¢ detailed testing of the income and expenditure of the Academy based on our assessment of the risk
of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance. This work was integrated with our audit of
the financial statements where appropriate and included analytical review and detailed substantive
testing of transactions.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 have not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the
authorities which govern them.

H%gw au\&:ﬂre pP
Reporting Accountant
Haysmacintyre LLP
10 Queen Street Place
London
EC4R 1AG

9 December 2019
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Note

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 2
Transfer from locat authority on conversion 27
Charitable activities:

Funding for the academy trust's

educational operations 3
Other trading activities 4
investments 5
Total
Expenditure on:
Raising Funds 6
Charitable activities:

Grants 7

Academy trust educational operations 8
Total
Netincome / (expenditure)
Transfers between funds 16

Other recognised gains / {losses)

Actuarial {losses)/ gains on defined benefit pension

schemes 25
Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward (restated as per Note 1(b))
Total funds carried forward at 31 August 2018 16

The notes on pages 29 to 49 form part of these accounts.

Restricted Restricted As restated

Unrestricted Generat Fixed Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2019 2018

£ £ £ € £

571,659 - 2,333,665 2,905,324 1,958,353
62,613 (42,000) 15,729 36,342 1,790,936
1,109,861 29,287,909 - 30,397,770 28,328,867
1,165,995 - - 1,165,985 968,141
3,404 - - 3,404 2,760
2,913,532 29,245,909 2,349,394 34,508,835 33,049,057
442,305 - - 442,305 381,855

- - 1,986,513 1,986,513 1,507,731
1,054,840 32,240,615 250,908 33,546,363 31,566,727
1,497,145 32,240,615 2,237,421 35,975,181 33,456,313
1,416,387 (2,994,706) 111,973 {1,466,346) (407,256)
(418,837) 407,726 11,111 - -
- (3,807,000) - (3,807,000) 3,240,000

997,550 (6,393,980) 123,084 (5,273,346) 2,832,744
1,742,503 (9,212,163) 12,313,966 4,844,306 2,011,562
2,740,053 {15,606,143) 12,437,050 (429,040) 4,844,308

26
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Notes
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13
Current assets
Debtors 14
Cash at bank and in hand
Liabilities
Creditors: amounts failing due within one year 15
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Net assots excluding pension scheme liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 25
Total net {liabilities)/assets
Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds
Fixed asset fund 16
Restricted Income Fund 16
Pension reserve 16
Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds 16

Total funds

The financial statement

Mrs K M Winrow
Chair of the Board of Direclors/Trustees

Company registration no: 08143249 {England & Wales)

2019 2019
£ £
11,724,819
1,642,933
5,383,422
7,026,355
{2,632,214)
4,394,141
16,118,960
16,118,960
(16,548,000)
{429,040)
12,437,050
941,857
{16,548,000)
(3,169,003)
2,740,053
{429,040)

As restated

2018 2018

£ £

14,772,434
1,532,913
4,882,028
6,414,941
(2,771,069)

3,643,872

15,416,306

15,416,306

(10,572,000)

4,844,306
12,313,966
1,359,837
(10,572,000)

3,101,803

1,742,503

4,844,308

n pages 26 {oc 49 were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on 9 December 2019 and are signed on their behalf by:

27
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Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2018

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2019

Notes

21

22

23

2019 2018

£ £
(1,635,582) 185,201
2,136,976 1,261,488
501,394 1,446,689
4,882,028 3,435,339
5,383,422 4,882,028

28
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1 Statement of Accounting Policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty, is set out below.

(a) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charilies: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charilies preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006. Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102,

(b} Prior year adjustments
The academy trust is required to measure assets and liabilities received by the academy trust on conversion at fair value as income and as assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet. Management have employed techniques to estimate fair value for land and buildings on the basis of fair values attributed to similar assets adjusted for
known local factors and the geographical size of the site upon which each school is situated.

During the financial year, the academy trust received the results of valuations as at 31 August 2018 performed by the DIE's appointed firm of chartered surveyors,
Montagu Evans, in respect of land and buildings occupied by schools that joined the academy trust in the previous year and earlier accounting periods. While these
valuations are performed for the purpose of the DfE's own accounts, they are considered a reliable estimate of fair value for financial reporting purposes. Due to the
specialised nature of the land and buildings used by academy trusts, fair value is estimated on a depreciated replacement cost basis.

Analysis of the valuations received has given rise to two prior period adjustments as detailed betow.

Schoot playing fields assigned under long lease to church schools

it has been the academy trust's policy to recognise the vaiue of playing fields assigned to the academy trust under separate lease agreement for church schools by
apportioning the fair value of land on a straight fine basis proportional to the total school site. On this basis, the total carrying value of playing fields separately
recognised in the 2018 accounts as long leasehold land was £9,448,899. For the first time, the valuations received from the ESFA have included a separate estimate
of the value of playing fields which indicates that the value of playing fields is negligible in comparison to the value of the main site on a depreciated replacement cost
basis. Therefore, management and the trustees consider it appropriate to make a prior period adjustment in order to reduce the value of playing fields to nil, and
remove the related depreciation charges.

The impact of this prior period adjustment has been as follows:

- A reduction in the cost of long leasehold land brought forward of £8,669,361 and accumulated depreciation of £220,362. This is matched by a corresponding
reduction in the restricted fixed asset fund of £9,448,999.

- A reduction in "Income from transfer from local authority on conversion” of £1,179,640 and a reduction in depreciation expense (included in expenditure on Charitable
activities refating to the academy trust's educational operations) of £77,360 in the comparative Statement of Financial Activities. The net impact has been to reduce
net income and net movement in restricled fixed asset and total funds reported in the previous year by £1,102,280.

- Restricted fixed asset funds brought forward as at 1 September 2017 has reduced by £8,346,719 in respect of the adjustment {o the cost and accumuiated
depreciation to school playing fields assigned to the academy trust in respect of church schools prior to this date.

As the value of playing fields is negligible, no adjustment has been in respect of playing fields included in the valuation of land and buildings included in non-church
schools.

Adiustment to fair value of land and buildings at Fir Tree Junior School, Wallingford

The estimated fair values of the land and buildings assigned under long lease in respect of Fir Tree School included in the valuation reports differ significantly to the
best estimate of fair value utilised in the previous year's financial statements. Therefore, management and the trustees consider it appropriate to make a prior period
adjustment in these financial statements to correct the fair values assigned on conversion to match those set out in Montagu Evan's valuation certificate.

The impact of this prior year adjustment has been as follows:

- A reduction in the cost of long leasehold land brought forward of £1,267,750 and a reduction in the cost of long ieasehold buildings brought forward of £1,421,000.
Accumulated depreciation brought forward has also reduced by £10,144 in respect of long leasehold land and £28,420 in respect of long leasehold buildings. This is
matched by a corresponding reduction in the restricted fixed asset fund.

- A reduction in "Income from transfer from local authority on conversion” of £2,688,750 and a reduction in depreciation expense (included in expenditure on Charitable
activities relating to the academy trust's educational operations) of £38,564 in the comparative Statement of Financial Activities. The netimpact has been to reduce
net income and net movement in restricted fixed asset and totai funds reported in the previous year by £2,650,186.

(c) Going Concemn
The trustees assess whether the use of going concem is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the academy trust to continue as a going concem. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from
the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the
going concem basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

(d) Income
Allincome is recognised when the academy trust has entitliement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the
period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not
unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met.
Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is
deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditionat entitliement to the grant. Unspent amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the
restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably
measured.
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1 Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
(d) income (continued)

Other Income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the goods have been provided or on completion of the service.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at
receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against 'Income from other trading activities’
and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low vaiue items they are
not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities'.

Transfer on conversion

Where assets are received by the trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the
point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the trust. An equal amount of income is recognised as transfer on conversion within Donations and capital grant
income to the net assets received.

Transfer of existing academies into the trust

Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the academy trust, the transferred net assets are measured at fair value and
recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust. An equal amount of income is recognised for the
transfer of an existing academy into the academy trust within Donations and capital grant income to the net assets acquired.

(e} Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third parly, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits
will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of
the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs altributable to a single activity are allocated direclly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not atiributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion
of the asset's use.

Expenditure on Raising Funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes costs of all fundraising aclivities events and non-
charitable frading.

Charitable Activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the academy trust
apportioned to charitable activities. Govemance costs are those attributable o the academy trust's compliance with constitutional and statutory requirements,
including audit, strategic management and Directors’ meetings and reimbursed expenses.

All resources expenses are inclusive of irecoverable VAT.

{f) Tangible Fixed Assets
Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment,

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the govemment or from the private sector, they are inciuded in the Balance
Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected usefu} economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the
asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with
unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

The academy trust occupies land and buildings which are provided to it and owned by various land Trustees (the Site Trustees'). The academy trust occupies this land
and buildings under the terms of Supplemental Agreements between the Oxford Diocesan Board of Education, the Site Trustees and the academy trust, which provide
the academy trust with the right to use the land and buildings of the Academies for an indefinite period, subject to a 2 year termination notice period, which amounts to
a mere licence. Having considered the fact that the academy trust occupies the land and such buildings as may be or may come to be erected on it by a mere licence,
which transfers to the academy trust no rights or controf over the sites save that of occupying it at the will of the Site Trustees under the terms of the relevant site trust,
the Directors have concluded that the value of the land and buildings occupied by the academy trust will not be recognised on the balance sheet of the academy trust.

As itis the academy trust's policy that land and buildings occupied under Supplemental Agreements do not constitute fixed assets, capital expenditure incurred by the
academy trust on new buildings, improvements and significant additions are not capitalised. Any such expenditure is recognised charitable expenditure as grants.
Where this expenditure has been funded by specific grants, it is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The academy trust also occupies land being school playing fields, under 125 year leases with Oxfordshire County Council and Royal Borough of Windsor and
Maidenhead. As these are considered to have negligible value, no vaiue is assigned to school playing fields where assigned to the academy trust.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold Jand, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:

Fixtures and fittings 5 years

Office equipment 5 years

IT infra-structure and systems 5 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Long leasehoid buildings 50 years

Long leasehold improvements 20 years

Long leasehoid land over the course of the lease term

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable.
Shortfalis between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.
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1

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

{g) Liabilities
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be
required in setilement, and the amount of the seltiement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay
to setile the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must provide.

(h) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event which it is probabie will result in the transfer of
economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is
based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised within interest payabie and similar charges.

{i} Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

{§) Financial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their
measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets — trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments
are not financial instruments. Amounts due to the charity's wholly owned subsidiary are heid at face value less any impairment

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial iabilities ~ trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Taxation and
sociat security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial fiability, as the cash setflement has
already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument,

(k) Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests sef out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable
company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxalion of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes.

(I} Pensions
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme ('TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Schemes
(LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a
way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary
on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period fo
which they relate.

The LGPS are funded multi-employer schemes and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension
scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high quaiity corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit
changes, seftlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in
the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by
muttiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest
income on the scheme assets and the actual retum on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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(m) Fund Accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the
trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a
specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor and include grants from the Department for
Education Group.

(n) Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabifities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

Cntical Areas of Judgement

Local government pension scheme actuarial assumptions

The present value of the Local Govemment Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a
variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which
are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amount of the pensions liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects resuits from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2019. Any differences between the figures derived
from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the camying amount of the pension liabifity.

Estimation of fair values of assets transferred to the academy trust on conversion from local authorities

As detailed in Note 1(d), the academy trust is required to measure assets and liabilities received by the academy trust on conversion at fair value as income and as
assets and fiabilities in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the trust. These assets include 125 year ieases with the local
authorities for school playing fields and for land and buiidings occupied by schools. The govemment has a regular programme of valuations undertaken on the assets
occupied by academy trusts undertaken by a firm of chartered surveyors for the purposes of its own accounts. When these values are made available the academy
trust these are utilised as they are considered a reliable estimate of fair value for financial reporting purposes. As these values are not available at the time this report
has been approved, management has estimates fair value based on the values altributed to simifar assets adjusted for known local factors and the geographical size
of the site upon which the school is situated. The trustees have reviewed the methodology applied and have confirmed their agreement that this is a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

Donations and capital grants

Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2019 2018
£ £ £ £ £
Donations 571,659 - - 571,659 547,213
Capital Grants - - 2,333,665 2,333,665 1,411,140
571,659 - 2,333,665 2,905,324 1,958,353

2017/18 total 547,213 - 1,411,140 1,958,353
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3

Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

DfE / ESFA grants

General Annual Grant (GAG)
Start Up Grants

Other DfE Group grants

Other Government grants
Local authority grants

Catering income

Other income from educational operations

2017/18 total

Other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Extended services
Other income

2017/18 total

Investment Income

Short term deposits

201718 total

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2019 2018
£ £ £ £ £
- 25,440,163 - 25,440,163 23,688,223
- - - - 50,000
- 2,688,238 - 2,688,238 2,579,707
- 28,128,401 - 28,128,401 26,317,930
- 1,159,508 - 1,159,508 1,049,809
- 1,159,508 - 1,159,508 1,049,809
458,818 - - 458,818 402,346
651,043 - - 651,043 558,782
1,109,861 - - 1,109,861 961,128
1,109,861 29,287,909 - 30,397,770 28,328,867
961,128 27,367,739 - 28,328,867
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2018 2018
£ £ £ £ £
96,748 - - 96,748 63,069
753,066 - - 753,056 618,870
316,191 - - 316,191 286,202
1,165,995 - - 1,165,995 968,141
968,141 - - 968,141
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2018 2018
£ £ £ £ £
3,404 - - 3,404 2,760
3,404 - - 3,404 2,760
2,760 - - 2,760

33



Page 34

Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 August 2019

76

6

Expenditure

Current year
Expenditure on raising funds
Grants
Academy's educational operations
Direct costs
Allocated support costs

Previous year
Expenditure on raising funds
Grants
Academy's educational operations
Direct costs
Allocated support costs

Net income/(expenditure) for the period includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation
Fees payable to auditor for:
Audit
Other services

Included within expenditure are the following transactions:

Unrecoverable debts

Analysis of grants

improvements to property owned by church land trustees occupied

by the academy trust

2017/18 total

Charitable Activities

Direct costs - educational operations
Support costs - educational operations

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs
Depreciation
Technology costs
Premises costs
Other support costs
Govemance costs

Staff Non Pay Expenditure Total
Costs Premises Other 2019
£ £ £ £
387,775 - 54,530 442,305
- 1,986,513 - 1,986,513
20,299,987 - 1,697,742 21,997,729
5,800,810 2,101,178 3,646,646 11,548,634
26,488,572 4,087,691 5,398,918 35,975,181
As restated
Staff Non Pay Expenditure Total
Costs Premises Other 2018
£ £ £ £
325,140 - 56,715 381,855
- 1,507,731 - 1,507,731
18,513,999 - 1,869,562 20,383,561
5,155,350 1,708,543 4,319,273 11,183,166
23,994,489 3,216,274 6,245,550 33,456,313
2019 2018
£ £
24,552 23,174
250,908 631,245
28,381 32,025
7.400 7,155
Total £ Individual items over £5,000
Amount £ Reason
13,293 13,293 Debtor has gone into administration
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2019 2018
£ £ £ £ £
- - 1,986,513 1,986,513 1,507,731
- - 1,986,513 1,986,513 1,507,731
- 1,507,731 1,507,731
As restated
Total Total
2019 2018
£ £
21,997,729 20,383,561
11,548,634 11,183,166
33,546,363 31,566,727
Educational Total Total
operations 2018 2018
£ £ £
5,800,810 5,800,810 5,155,350
250,908 250,908 631,245
355,296 355,296 431,017
1,850,270 1,850,270 1,824,467
3,186,696 3,186,696 3,028,326
104,654 104,654 112,761
11,548,634 11,548,634 11,183,166
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9 Staff

a. Staff costs
Staff costs during the period were:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes
Apprenticeship Levy

Supply staff costs

Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments
Termination (including severance) payments

b. Non statutory/non contractual staff severance payments

2018 2018
£ £
19,079,866 17,341,169
1,572,302 1,414,248
6,125,600 4,298,180
82,005 73,374
25,859,773 23,126,971
520,249 508,964
108,550 48,555
26,488,572 23,684,490
50,825 13,273
57,725 35,282
108,550 48,555

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling £32,446 (2018: £48,555). Individually, the payments were £800,

£2,536, £4,391, £4,820, £4,964, £5,083 and £9,852.

¢ Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as foliows:

Teachers
Management, Administration & Support staff

d Higher paid staff

The number of employees (including headteachers and senior staff) whose employee benefits (excluding empioyer pension

cosis) exceeded £60,000 was:

£60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - £80,000
£90,001 - £100,000

e Key management personnel

2018 2018
No. No.
379 3N
687 610
1,066 921
2019 2018
No. No.
1 6
2 3
1
14

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee
benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the

academy trust was £298,024 (2018: £269,477).
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Central Services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:
Educational services and school improvements;
Human resources support;
Govemance support;
Accountancy support

The trust charges for these services on the following basis:
5% of the Academy's GAG for the period to 31 August 2018

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows: 2019 2018
£ £

John Henry Newman CE England Academy, Littlemore 65,511 70,721
Grove CE Primary School 32,867 34,579
The Hendreds CE Primary School 27,236 28,908
St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Cowley 79,451 80,660
Wheatley C of E Primary School 59,945 62,963
St Peter's C of E Middle School, Old Windsor 45,723 49,526
Burchetts Green C of E Infants School 18,591 17,257
St Luke's C of E Primary School, Maidenhead 56,434 57,152
The Blake C of E Primary School, Witney 71,333 71,856
St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Langford 29,174 28,076
St Peter's C of E Primary School, Alvescot 14,976 15,346
North Leigh C of E Primary Schoot 34,532 33,9684
Bampton C of E Primary School 32,915 27,359
The Batt C of E Primary School, Witney 59,551 58,372
Burford Primary School 23,724 23,122
Brize Norton Primary School 24 821 24,646
Holyport C of £ Primary School 59,966 64,860
St Mary's C of E Infants School, Witney 22,141 20,522
Deddington C of E Primary School 36,428 36,083
Dr South's C of E Primary School, islip 21,761 21,723
Datchet St Mary's C of E Primary Academy 43,993 46,376
Kidmore End C of E Primary School 36,327 37,726
Leafield C of E Primary School 21,869 22,072
South Moreton Primary School 30,180 31,369
Dr Radcliffe's C of E Primary School, Steeple Aston 37,071 37,047
Tackiey C of E Primary School 20,936 22,872
Wroxton C of E Primary School 24,027 22,314
North Hinksey C of E Primary School 37,594 34,283
St Marys C of E Primary School, Banbury 36,279 30,302
Northboumne C of E Primary School 57,524 36,606
St Nicholas C of E Primary School, Wallingford 32,744 13,726
Fir Tree Junior School, Wallingford 40,494 16,974
Wootton-by-Woodstock C of E Primary School 12,837 -
1,248,955 1,179,382

Related Party Transactions - Trustees’ Remuneration & Expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the academy trust. The principal only receives
remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of principal under their contract of employment, and not in respect of their role as trustee. Other
trustees did not receive any payments, other than expenses, from the academy trust in respect of their role as trustees. The value of trustees’ remuneration and other
benefits was as follows:

Mrs J A Dellar (principal and trustee) Remuneration: £980,000 - £95,000
Employer's pension contributions: £15,000 - £20,000

in the previous year Mrs J A Delfar was employed directly by the Oxford Diocesan Board of Education as detailed in Note 26 (Related party transactions).

During the period ended 31 August 2019, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £3,408 were reimbursed or paid directly to 5 trustees (2018: £4,780 to 6 trustees).

Trustees' and Officers’ Insurance

The academy frust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover
losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occuring whilst on academy trust business,
and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers indemnity element from the overalf cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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13  Tangible Fixed Assets
Long Long IT infra-
Leasehoid Leasehold Plant and Computer  structure and
Land Buildings Machinery Equipment systems Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 September 2018 as restated (Note 1(b)) 6,098,610 5,588,529 747,772 669,389 29,550 13,133,860
Transfer on conversion - - - 3,200 - 3,200
Additions - 32,889 49,295 117,809 - 200,093
At 31 August 2018 6,098,610 5621418 797,067 790,508 29,550 13,337,153
Depreciation
At 1 September 2018 as restated (Note 1(b)) 94,095 284,417 468,572 504,879 9,463 1,361,426
Charged in year 48,784 16,892 115,248 97,812 5,956 250,908
Al 31 August 2018 142,879 267,525 583,820 602,691 15,419 1,612,334
Net book values
At 31 August 2019 5,955,731 5,353,893 213,247 187,817 14,131 11,724,819
At 31 August 2018 6,004,515 5,304,112 279,200 164,520 20,087 11,772,434

The cost and accumulated depreciation of long leasehoid land and long leasehold buildings brought forward has been restated in prior years in these accounts as

explained in Note 1(b).

The academy trust occupies land and buildings which are provided to it and owned by various land Trustees ('the Site Trustees'). The academy trust occupies this land
and buildings under the terms of Supplemental Agreements between the Oxford Diocesan Board of Education, the Site of Trustees and the academy trust, which
provide the academy trust with the right to use the land and buildings of the Academies for an indefinite period, subject to a 2 year termination notice period, which
amounts to a mere licence. Having considered the fact that the academy trust occupies the land and such buildings as may be or may come fo be erecled onitby a
mere ficence, which transfers to the academy trust no rights or controf over the sites save that of occupying it at the will of the Site Trustees under the terms of the
relevant site trust, the Trustees have concluded that the value of the land and buildings occupied by the academy trust will not be recognised on the balance sheet of

the academy trust.

14  Debtors

Trade debtors

VAT recoverable

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

15  Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2018
Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2019

2019 2018
£ £
305,672 83,945
828,241 561,161
13,189 26,543
495,831 861,264
1,642,933 1,532,013
2019 2018
£ £
638,940 1,050,314
409,199 304,467
399,134 384,048
1,184,941 942,240
2632214 2,771,069
2019 2018
£ £
630,003 470,293
(630,003) (470,203)
842,003 630,003
842,003 630,003
2003,

The majority of the balance of the deferred income at 31 August 2019 relates to funds received in 2019 for Universal infant Free School Meals grants which will be

utilised in the year ended 31 August 2020.

37



Page 38

Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2019

80

16

Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DfE Group grants
School Improvement grant
Local Authority grants
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds

Transfer on conversion and from existing trusts

DfE Group capital grants transferred on conversion
DfE Group capital grants

Capital expenditure treated as grants to Site Trustees
Fixed assets purchased with capital grants

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total funds

As restated

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September Income Expenditure Losses & 31 August
2018 Transfers 2019
£ £ £ £ £

476,948 25,440,163 (26,404,946) 815,971 328,136
871,658 2,688,238 (2,484,840) (461,335) 613,721
11,231 - (11,231) - -

- 1,159,508 (1,212,598) 53,090 -
(10,572,000) (42,000) (2,127,000) (3,807,000) (16,548,000)
(9,212,163) 29,245,909 (32,240,615) (3,399,274) (15,606,143)
11,543,942 3,200 3,661 - 11,550,803
- 12,529 - (12,529) -

541,532 2,333,665 - (2,162,966) 712,231

- - (1,986,513) 1,986,513 -

228,492 - (254,569) 200,093 174,016
12,313,966 2,349,394 {2,237,421) 11,111 12,437,050
3,101,803 31,595,303 (34,478,036) (3,388,163) (3,169,093)
1,742,503 2,913,532 (1,497,145) (418,837) 2,740,053
1,742,503 2,913,532 (1,497,145) (418,837) 2,740,053
4,844,306 34,508,835 (35,975,181) (3,807,000) (429,040}

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as foliows:

General annual grant

This is used for educational purposes in line with the academy trust's objeclives and its funding agreements,

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August

2019.

Other DFfE/ESFA grants

This represents revenue grants and other income which are used to provide additional support in specific areas in the school as set out by the terms of the respective

grants and funders.

Local Authority grants

These were used to cover repairs and maintenance to the building and to supply Special Needs support and Nursery places for 3-4 year olds.

Pension reserve

This represents the negative reserve in respect of the liability on the LGPS defined benefit pension scheme.

Fixed asset fund

The fund includes the value of the tangible fixed assets of the academy on conversion, and monies transferred from the GAG or other restricted funds specifically for

expenditure on tangible fixed assets, and the annual charges for depreciation of these assets.

Transfers between funds

Transfers from the General Annual Grant Fund to the fixed asset fund relate to fixed assets purchased from these funds.
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Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the
preceding period is as follows:

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DIE Group grants
Start Up Grant

School Improvement grant
Local Authority grants
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds

Transfer on conversion and from existing trusts

DfE Group capital grants transferred on conversion
DfE Group capital grants

Other capilal grants

Capital expenditure treated as grants to Site Trustees
Fixed assets purchased with capital grants

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total funds

As restated As restated
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September income Expenditure Losses & 31 August
2017 Transfers 2018
£ £ £ £ £

292,464 23,688,223 (24,263,588) 759,849 476,948
881,292 2,579,707 (2,589,341) - 871,658
197,970 50,000 (138,138) (109,832) -
14,878 - (3,647) - 11,231

- 1,049,809 (1,049,809) - -
(10,587,000) (1,514,000) (1,711,000) 3,240,000 (10,572,000)
(9,200,396) 25,853,739 (29,755,523) 3,890,017 (9,212,163)
9,116,801 2,791,342 (364,201) - 11,543,942

- 44,499 - (44,499) -

62,186 1,411,140 - (931,794) 541,532
12,000 - - (12,000) -

- - (1,507,731) 1,507,731 -

357,449 - (267,044) 138,087 228,492
9,548,436 4,246,981 (2,138,976) 657,525 12,313,966
348,040 30,100,720 (31,894,499) 4,547,542 3,101,803
1,663,522 2,948,337 (1,561,814) (1,307,542) 1,742,503
1,663,522 2,948,337 (1,561,814) (1,307,542) 1,742,503
2,011,562 33,049,057 (33,456,313) 3,240,000 4,844,306
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16  Funds (continued)
Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2019 were allocated as follows:

John Henry Newman CE England Academy, Littlemore
Grove CE Primary School

The Hendreds CE Primary School

St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Cowley
Wheatley C of E Primary Schoo!

St Peter's C of E Middie School, Old Windsor
Burchetts Green C of E Infants School

St Luke's C of E Primary School, Maidenhead
The Blake C of E Primary School, Witney

St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Langford
St Peter's C of E Primary School, Alvescot
North Leigh C of E Primary School

Bampton C of E Primary School

The Batt C of E Primary School, Witney
Burford Primary School

Brize Norton Primary School

Holyport C of E Primary School

St Mary's C of E Infants School, Witney
Deddington C of E Primary School

Dr South's C of E Primary School, islip

Datchet St Mary's C of E Primary Academy
Kidmore End C of £ Primary School

Leafleld C of E Primary School

South Moreton Primary School

Dr Radcliffe’s C of E Primary School, Steeple Aston
Tackley C of E Primary School

Wroxton C of E Primary School

North Hinksey C of E Primary School

St Marys C of E Primary School, Banbury
Northboume C of E Primary School

St Nicholas C of E Primary School, Wallingford
Fir Tree Junior School, Wallingford
Wootton-by-Woodstock C of E Primary School
Central services

Total before fixed assets and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve
Total

Total Total
2019 2018

£ £
252,023 164,817
32,964 15,850
259,788 265,407
352,798 302,428
18,432 73,551
(5,528) (13,661)
95,658 121,656
135,738 139,147
76,241 22,058
86,299 121,522
20,426 45,290
127,615 129,064
67,061 55,070
110,668 110,555
70,746 83,571
23,413 42,453
270,048 122,098
63,608 57,934
50,800 49,253
40,254 41,140
114,261 110,157
69,578 61,347
130,750 108,819
131,209 83,675
79,963 62,313
91,204 95,640
43,693 22,651
69,579 31,137
134,555 90,354
86,286 78,593
79,488 55,206
65,607 79,112
18,436 -
418,249 274,134
3,681,910 3,102,340
12,437,050 12,313,966
(16,548,000) (10,572,000}
{429,040) 4,844,306

St Peter's C of E Middle School, Old Windsor is carrying a historical deficit of £5,528 due to additional expenditure on school improvement in the first 3 years to help
the school out of special measures which was achieved in September 2017, when the school was rated Good in all areas.

The academy trust's school improvement and central finance teams are working closely with the school's leadership team, to ensure all measures are being taken to
maintain the improved standards whilst working towards a balanced school budget. The school is to receive additional funding in 2019/20 to be allocated against

expansion plans.
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Analysis of academies by cost
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching
and
Educational Other Other Costs
Support Support Educational {excluding Total Total
Staff Costs Staff Costs Supplies depreciation) 2019 2018
£ £ £ £ £ £
John Henry Newman CE England Academy 1,141,916 146,782 32,583 252,851 1,574,132 1,740,545
Grove CE Primary School 488,017 79,809 17,840 122,153 707,819 771,750
The Hendreds CE Primary School 393,814 38,176 10,885 228,031 670,906 632,432
St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Cowley 1,404,479 187,160 28,565 305,337 1,825,541 1.833,175
Wheatley C of E Primary School 988,562 191,199 19,387 261,787 1,460,935 1,512,962
St Peter's C of E Middle School, Old Windsor 636,762 179,529 9,561 198,016 1,023,868 1,078,240
Burchetts Green C of E Infants School 272,810 52,089 11,992 135,551 472,442 420,554
St Luke's C of £ Primary School, Maidenhead 969,762 149,420 32,412 339,572 1,481,166 1.434,646
The Blake C of E Primary School, Witney 1,200,317 193,430 24,237 274,172 1,692,156 1,717,180
St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Langford 507,897 80,346 12,857 161,888 762,988 688,057
St Peter's C of E Primary School, Alvescot 258,665 27,947 6,026 94,195 386,833 368,060
North Leigh C of £ Primary Schoot 559,456 89,521 6,753 163,292 819,022 828,463
Bampton C of E Primary School 549,418 105,967 11,244 122,768 789,397 780,714
The Batt C of E Primary School, Witney 974,282 114,143 28,138 270,750 1,387,313 1,370,666
Burford Primary School 384,362 120,803 32,317 104,418 641,900 601,863
Brize Norton Primary School 414,395 55,745 14,913 131,177 616,230 602,401
Holyport C of E Primary School 831,116 204,375 24,760 235,120 1,285,371 1,507,165
St Mary's C of E Infants School, Witney 291,800 53,787 3,777 128,391 471,755 462,581
Deddington C of E Primary School 577,837 57,023 18,240 200,078 853,178 525,218
Dr South's C of E Primary School, Islip 447,305 74,263 9,482 108,715 639,765 615,022
Datchet St Mary's C of E Primary Academy 763,219 160,367 14,400 204,571 1,142,557 1,209,832
Kidmore End C of E Primary School 556,715 110,165 18,440 184,362 869,682 496,631
Leafield C of E Primary Schoot 311,720 52,906 27,335 134,790 526,751 527,515
South Moreton Primary School 433,819 72,707 17,453 179,820 703,799 995,960
Dr Radcliffe’s C of E Primary School 669,291 119,585 27,680 186,158 1,002,684 709,709
Tackiey C of E Primary School 315,879 36,519 14,260 142,629 509,287 827,238
Wroxton C of E Primary Schoot 328,049 64,386 10,895 126,576 529,906 864,932
North Hinksey C of E Primary School 593,386 87,306 8,972 177,388 867,052 826,851
St Marys C of E Primary School, Banbury 586,707 83,889 10,801 160,732 842,129 758,413
Northbourne C of E Primary School 1,032,317 141,681 28,185 252,628 1,454,811 950,803
St Nicholas C of E Primary School, Wallingford 508,397 135,137 9,100 168,960 821,594 331,834
Fir Tree Junior School, Wallingford 658,314 196,860 11,703 156,621 1,023,498 418,260
Wootton-by-Woodstock C of E Primary School 246,278 32,585 3,540 67,012 349,415 -
Central services 2,924 2,669,486 - 733,468 3,405,878 2,907,565
Academy Trust 20,299,887 6,165,063 558,733 6,713,977 33,737,760 31,317,337
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Analysis of Net Assets between Funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2019 are represented by:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current fiabilities
Pension scheme liabitity

Total net assets

Comparative information (as restated) in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Financial instruments

Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilittes measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets include trade debtors and other debtors,
Financial liabilities include trade creditors and other creditors.

Capital Commitments

Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements

Restricted
Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted General Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds
£ £ £ £
- - 11,724,819 11,724,819
2,740,053 3,574,071 712,231 7,026,355
- (2,632,214) - (2,632,214)
- (16,548,000) - (16,548,000)
2,740,053 (15,606,143) 12,437,050 {429,040)
Restricted
Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted General Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds
£ £ £ £
- - 11,772,434 11,772,434
1,742,503 4,130,906 541,532 6,414,941
(2,771,069) - {2,771,069)
- (10,572,000) - {10,572,000)
1,742,503 (9,212,163) 12,313,966 4,844,306
2019 2018
£ £
318,861 110,488
1,038,074 1,434,362
5,383,422 4,882,028
2019 2018
£ £
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20 Commitments under operating leases
Operating Leases

At 31 August 2019 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases was;

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between one and five years

21 Reconciliation of Net Expenditure to Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net (expenditure)/income for the reporting period (as per the Statemnent of Financial Activities)
Adjusted for:

Depreciation charges (note 13)

Transfer of fixed assets {o expenditure

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income

Interest receivable (note 4)

Fixed assets transferred from Local Authority on conversion

Fixed assets transferred from existing academy trust

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions paid (see note 25)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance costs (see note 25)

LGPS deficit transferred on conversions and from existing academy trusts
(Increase)/decrease in debtors

(Decrease)increase in creditors

Net Cash {used in)/ provided by Operating Activities

22  Cash flow from Investing Activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DIE/ESFA

Net cash provided by Investing Activities

23 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

2019 2018
£ £
14,751 3,457
12,134 15,884
26,885 19,341
2019 2018
£ £
{1,466,345) 3,345,210
250,908 747,169
- 14,325
(2,333,665) (1,411,140)
(3,404) (2,760)
(3,200) (6,659,732)
1,823,000 1,401,000
304,000 310,000
42,000 1,514,000
(110,020} 86,124
{138,855) 841,005
{1,635 ,562) 185,201
2019 2018
£ £
3,404 2,760
(200,093) (152,412)
2,333,665 1,411,140
2,136,976 1,261,488

At 31 August

At 31 August

2018 2018

£ £
5,383,422 4,882,028
5,383,422 4,882,028
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Members' Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within
one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabifities contracted before he/she ceases to be
a member.

Pension and Similar Obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Engtand and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff;
and the Local Govemment Pension Schemes (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, consisting of the Oxfordshire County Council Pension Fund which is managed by
Oxfordshire County Council and the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund which is managed by the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead. Both are multi-
employer defined benefit pension schemes.

The LGPS obligation refates to the employees of the academy trust, who were the employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained schools and
new employees who were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year/period. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on conversion represents
their cumulative service at both the predecessor schools and the academy trust at the balance sheet date.

The {atest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31 March 2016.

Contributions amounting to £399,744 (2018: £363,600) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2019 and are included within creditors.
Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from 1 April
2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for
teachers in part-time empioyment following appointment or a change of contract, aithough they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go' basis — these contributions along with those made by employers are credited to the
Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations
and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial schemne valuations
are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as
at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published by
the Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the valualion and subsequent consultation are:

Employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer administration charge)

Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notionat
assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million, giving a notional past service deficit of
£14,900 million

An employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

The assumed real rate of retum is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of eamings. The rate of real eamings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed
nominal rate of retumn is 5.06%.
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25

Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September 2015. The next valuation of the TPS is currently underway
based on April 2016 data, whereupon the employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1 September 2019,

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £2,931,520 (2018: £1,706,573).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the
scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy frust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Schemes

The LGPS' are funded defined benefit pension schemes, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended
31 August 2019 was £1,856,000 (2018: £1,502,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £1,422,000 (2018: £1,152,000) and employees’ contributions totalled
£434,000 (2018: £350,000). The agreed minimum employer contribution rate in respect of the Oxfordshire County Council Pension Fund is 19.3% and in respect of
the Royal County of Berkshire Pension fund is 17.6%.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government
Pension Scheme liabiiities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Oxfordshire County Council Royal County of Berkshire

Principatl Actuarial Assumptions At 31 At 31 At 31 AL31
August August August August

2019 2018 2019 2018

Rate of increase in salaries 3.80% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.30% 2.40% 2.90% 2.30%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.80% 2.80% 1.85% 2.65%
Inflation assumption (CP1) 1.50% 2.30% 2.20% 2.30%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%

The current mortality assumptions inciude sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed fife expectations on reirement age 65 are:

At 31 August At 31 August At 31 August At 31 August
2019 2018 2019 2018
Retiring today
Males 22.7 234 2241 23.1
Females 243 255 24.0 25.2
Retiring in 20 years
Males 240 25.7 23.7 253
Females 25.7 279 25.8 275
Impact on present value of Impact on present value of
pension liabilities pension liabilities
Sensitivity analysis At 31 August At 31 August At 31 August Al 31 August
2019 2018 2019 2018
£'000's £'000's £'000's £'000's
Discount rate +0.1% (851) (458) {5,460) (101)
Discount rate -0.1% 651 458 5,723 104
Mortality assumption: 1 year increase 560 560 5,789 146
Mortality assumption: 1 year decrease (560) (560) {5,398) (141)
Adjustment to long term salary increases +0.1% 106 87 5,605 12
Adjustment to long term salary increases -0.1% (108) (87) (5,575) (12)
Adjustment to pension increases and deferred revaluation +0.1% 530 363 5475 92
Adjustment to pension increases and deferred revaluation -0.1% {530) (363) (90) (90)
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25

Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

The academy's share of the assets in the scheme were:

Equities

Other bonds

Property

Cash

Target Return Portfolio
Commodities

Infrastructure

Longevity insurance

Total market vaiue of assets

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost

Past service costs

Net interest cost

Admin expenses

Loss on assumption of net liabilities on settlements
Total operating charge

Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation

Retumn on fund assets in excess of interest

Other actuarial gains/(fosses) on assets

Change in financial assumptions

Change in demographic assumptions

Experience gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligation
Actuarial gain/(foss) on defined benefit pension schemes

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At 1 September

Current service cost

Interest cost

Change in financial assumptions

Change in demographic assumptions
Experience gain on defined benefit obligation
Employee contributions

Estimated benefits paid net of transfers in
Liabilities assumed on settlements

Past service costs

At 31 August

Changes in the falr value of academy’s share of scheme assets:

At 1 September

Interest on assets

Retum on assets less interest

Other actuarial gains/(losses)

Administration expenses

Contributions by employer including unfunded
Contributions by scheme participants and other employers
Estimated benefits paid plus unfunded net of transfers in
Settlement prices received

At 31 August

Present value of defined benefit obfigations
Fair value of share of scheme assets
Deficit in the schemes

Oxfordshire County Council

Royal County of Berkshire

Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
at 31 August at 31 August at 31 August at 31 August
2018 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
8,769,900 7,355,000 1,326,000 934,000
2,669,100 1,786,000 346,000 298,000
762,600 841,000 301,000 272,000
508,400 525,000 187,000 294,000
- - 114,000 81,000
- - 15,000 37,000
- - 233,000 133,000
- - {138,000) (60,000)
12,710,000 10,507,000 2,384,000 1,989,000
2019 2018
£ £
2,633,000 2,651,000
610,000 -
304,000 310,000
2,000 2,000
42,000 1,514,000
3,591,000 4,377,000
2018 2018
£ £
417,000 459,000
(6,289,000) 2,781,000
2,065,000 -
(3,807,000) 3,240,000
2019 2018
£ £
23,068,000 19,448,000
2,633,000 2,551,000
676,000 582,000
6,289,000 (2,781,000)
(2,065,000) -
434,000 350,000
(96,000) (100,000)
93,000 3,018,000
610,000 -
31,642,000 23,068,000
2019 2018
£ £
12,496,000 8,861,000
372,000 272,000
417,000 459,000
{2,000) (2,000)
1,422,000 1,152,000
434,000 350,000
(96,000) (100,000)
51,000 1,504,000
15,094,000 12,496,000
2019 2018
£ £
(31,642,000) (23,068,000)
15,094,000 12,496,000
(16,548,000) (10,572,000)
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26 Related Party Transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may
take place with organisations in which the trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements
of the AFH, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtain their approval where required, and with the academy trust's
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions. The following related party ransactions took place in
the financial period.

The Oxford Diocesan Board of Education ("ODBE") is a corporate member of the academy trust. Mrs K M Winrow is an unpaid director of the academy trust and also
an unpaid director of the ODBE. During the year ended 31 August 2019, the academy trust paid £211,857 (2018: £346,702) to the ODBE for various support
services, including training and SLA for Church Schools. In the previous year these charges also included the services of the CEO. At the year end the academy trust
owed the ODBE £192 (2018: £73,383). The services have been provided at no more than cost and the ODBE has provided a statement of assurance confirming this.

Mrs J A Dellar is the CEO and a director of the academy trust. Lee Bolton Monier Wiliams ("LBMW"), the firm acting as the academy trust's solicitors is considered to
be a related party as Mr H Dellar, an equity pariner of LBMW is her spouse. During the year LBMW invoiced fees for academy conversions, HR and related advice
totalling £24,207 (2018: £31,052). No decisions relating to the provision of legal services are made by the CEO, and the services are provided at direct cost.

The Oxford Academy is a single academy trust of which the ODBE is a corporate member. During the year, The Oxford Academy charged the trust £14,732 (2018:
£141,505) for providing staffing services and premises support.

Mr D Cousins, a member of the senior leadership team of the academy trust, is also Director and CEO of the Oxford Diocesan Bucks Schoois Trust ("ODBST"). The
total amounts invoiced to the academy trust in the year were £4,900 (2018: £6,825) for school improvement advisory services for North Oxfordshire schools. The
services have been provided at no mere than cost and ODBST has provided a statement of assurance confirming this.

River Leaming Trust ("RLT") is a multi-academy trust of which the ODBE is a corporate member. Ms S Appleby a non-trustee member of the audit committee, is the
Finance Director of RLT. During the year RLT charged the trust £955 in respect of teaching training services under the Oxfordshire Schools Teaching Alliance. The
services have been provided at no more than cost and RLT has provided a statement of assurance confirming this.

The Vale Academy Trust ("VAT") an academy trust of which the ODBE is a corporate member. During the year VAT charged the trust £9,695 (2018: £13,706) in
respect of teaching training services under the Oxfordshire Schools Teaching Alliance.

27  Conversion to an academy trust

The following schools converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to the
academy trust for £nil consideration.

School name Date of conversion Local authority
Wootton by Woodstock C of E Primary School 01 October 2018 Oxfordshire County Council

The transfers have been accounted for using the acquisition method. The assets and liabiities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance
sheet under the appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as the net income in the Statement of Financial Activities as Donations - transfer
from locat authority on conversion.

The following table sels out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred on the conversion of the schools and an analysis of their recognition in the

SOFA:
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Fund Funds Total
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets
Other tangible fixed assets - - 3,200 3,200
Budget surplus / (deficit) on LA funds 62,613 - 12,529 75,142
Budget surplus / (deficit) on other school funds - - - -
LGPS pension deficit - (42,000) - (42,000)

Other identified assets and liabilities - - - .

Net assets/(liabilities) 62,613 (42,000 15,729 36,342
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27  Conversion to an academy trust (continued)
The following tables set out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred on conversion of the schools on a school-by-school basis:
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Fund Funds Total
£ £ £ £
Wootton by Woodstock CE Primary School
Tangible fixed assets
Other tangible fixed assets - - 3,200 3,200
Budget surplus / (deficit) on LA funds 59,010 - 12,529 71,538
LGPS pension deficit - (42,000) - {42,000)
Net assets/(liabilities) 59,010 (42,000) 15,729 32,739
Included in “"transfer from local authority on conversion' are amounts relating to previous years, where estimated figures have been updated and further information
has been made available, in respect of Northboume C of E Primary School. The impact in the Statement of Financial Aclivities is as follows:
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Fund Funds Total
£ £ £ £
Budget surplus / (deficit) on LA funds 3,603 - - 3,603
Net assets 3,603 - - 3,603
28  Postbalance sheet events

in October 2019, Benson C of E Primary School joined the academy trust.
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29  Prior year comparative Statement of Financial Activities - as restated
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds 2018
£ £ £ £
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capitat grants 547,213 - 1,411,140 1,958,353
Transfer from local authority on conversion 469,095 (1,514,000) 2,835,841 1,790,936
‘Transfer from existing academy trust - - - .
Charitable activities:
Funding for the academy trust's educational operations 961,128 27,367,739 - 28,328,867
Other trading activities 968,141 - - 968,141
Investments 2,760 - - 2,760
Total 2,948,337 25,853,739 4,246,981 33,049,057
Expenditure on:
Raising Funds 381,855 - - 381,855
Charitable activities:
Grants - - 1,507,731 1,507,731
Academy trust educational operations 1,179,959 29,755,523 631,245 31,566,727
Total 1,661,814 29,755,523 2,138,976 33,456,313
Net income / (expenditure) 1,386,523 (3.901,784) 2,108,005 (407,256)
Transfers between funds (1,307,542) 650,017 657,525 -
Other recognised gains / (losses)
Acluarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes - 3,240,000 - 3,240,000
Net movement in funds 78,981 (11,767) 2,765,530 2,832,744

49



92



Lo

Department
for Education

Academy and free
school: master
funding agreement

March 2018 v4



94

Contents

SUMMARY SHEET
1. INTRODUCTION
Definitions of types of Academies:
Other defined terms:
General Obligations of the Academy Trust
Governance
2. RUNNING OF THE ACADEMIES
Length of school day and year
Teachers and staff
School meals
Pupil Premium
Charging
Exclusions
Curriculum
Assessment
3. GRANT FUNDING
Recurrent Expenditure Grants
Capital Grant
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Earmarked Annual Grant (EAG)
Arrangements for paying GAG and EAG
Other relevant funding
4. FINANCIAL AND ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS
General
Application of the Academies Financial Handbook
Budgeting for funds
Carrying forward of funds
Annual accounts and audit
Keeping financial records
Access to financial records
Acquiring and disposing of Publicly Funded Assets

Retention of proceeds from the disposal of capital assets

a U »nn b

10
12
14
14
14
15
16
17
18
18
20
22
22
22
24
26
27
28
28
28
29
30
31
31
32
32
33
33



5.
6.

7.

95

Transactions outside the usual planned range
Borrowing
COMPLAINTS
TERMINATION
Termination by either party
Change of Control of the Academy Trust
OTHER CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS
Information
Access by the Secretary of State's Officers
Notices

Contractual

34
34
35
36
36
39
39
39
40
41
42



96

SUMMARY SHEET

Information about the Academy Trust:

Name of Academy Trust

Address

Company Number

Contact details for the Chair of

Charity Trustees

Please confirm whether additional clauses have been included (e.g., PFI

clauses which will be supplied by your project lead if needed)

Descriptor

Clause
No.

Applied

Not used




1.

97

INTRODUCTION

Introduction and definitions

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

This Agreement is between the Secretary of State for Education (the
“Secretary of State”) and [NAME] (the “Academy Trust”), and is an
academy agreement as defined by section 1 of the Academies Act 2010.

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee incorporated in
England and Wales with company number [xxxxxxxx]. The Academy Trust is

a charity and its directors are the Charity Trustees of the Academy Trust.

In order for the Academy Trust to establish and run a number of Academies in
England, according to the provisions of the Academies Act 2010, and in order
for the Secretary of State to make payments to the Academy Trust, the
Academy Trust must meet the requirements in this Agreement and in each
Supplemental Agreement that has been entered into by the Academy Trust

and the Secretary of State in respect of each Academy.

In this Agreement, and (except as expressly provided otherwise) in each
Supplemental Agreement, the capitalised words and expressions listed below

will have the following meanings:-

Definitions of types of Academies:

An “Academy” is a school or educational institution established and run in

accordance with the Academies Act 2010, and where this Agreement refers

collectively to “Academies” run by the Academy Trust, this may include any of the

following types of school or educational institution:

A “Free School” means an Academy which is a new educational institution within

the meaning of section 9(1)(a) of the Academies Act 2010;

A “Mainstream Academy” means an Academy or a Free School which meets the

requirements set out in section 1A(1) of the Academies Act 2010;

An “Alternative Provision Academy” means an Academy or a Free School which

meets the requirements set out in section 1C(1) of the Academies Act 2010;

5
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A “Special Academy” means an Academy or a Free School which meets the criteria
set out in section 1A(2) of the Academies Act 2010;

A “Sponsored Academy” will be (unless otherwise stated) a Mainstream Academy
which is established pursuant to an Academy Order under section 4 of the
Academies Act 2010, which will be designated as a Sponsored Academy within the
Supplemental Agreement applicable to that Academy, and as such certain conditions

may apply to it;

“Studio School” means a type of Mainsteam Academy, principally for pupils and
students aged between 14 and 19, which places an emphasis on such pupils and

students obtaining employability skills through project-based learning;

“University Technical College” means a type of Free School, principally for pupils
and students aged between 14 and 19, which provides technical education with the

emphasis on a particular industry or scientific sector;

A “16-19 Academy” means an Academy or a Free School which meets the

requirements set out in section 1B(1) of the Academies Act 2010.
Other defined terms:

“16-19 Funding Guidance” means the guidance published by the ESFA and

amended from time to time, on behalf of the Secretary of State.

“Academies Financial Handbook” means the document with that title published by
the ESFA and amended from time to time, on behalf of the Secretary of State.

“Academy Financial Year” means the year from 1 September to 31 August, or a

different period notified in writing by the Secretary of State.
“Articles” means the Academy Trust’s articles of association.

“Business day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, Christmas Day,
Good Friday or any day which is a bank holiday with the meaning given to that

expression in the Banking and Financial Dealings Act 1971.
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“Charity Trustees” means the directors of the Academy Trust who are responsible

for the general control and management of the administration of the Academy Trust.

“Chief Inspector” means Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Education, Children’s
Services and Skills.

“Commissioner” means LAs and/or schools referring pupils to an Alternative
Provision Academy for admission under the legal powers set out in the relevant

Supplemental Agreement.

“Control” means the power of an organisation or individual (‘A’) to ensure that the
affairs of a another organisation are conducted in accordance with A’s wishes,
whether through share ownership or voting power, by agreement, because of powers
conferred by articles of association or any other document, or otherwise; and
“Controls” will be construed accordingly.

“DfE” and the expression “Department” means the Department for Education or any

successor Department which has responsibility for schools”
“ESFA” means the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

“Guidance” means guidance issued by or on behalf of the Secretary of State, as

amended from time to time.

“Independent School Standards” means the independent school standards

prescribed under section 157 of the Education Act 2002.
"LA" means a local authority.

“Local Governing Body” means the committee (if any) established by the Academy
Trust in relation to an Academy or Academies, within the Academy Trust, in

accordance with the Articles.

“Parents” means parents?! or guardians.

! Parent has the meaning set out in section 575 of the Education Act 1996

7
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“Predecessor School” means the school which the Academy in question replaced,

where applicable.

“Publicly Funded Assets” means (a) assets or property funded wholly or partly
using payments made by or on behalf of the Secretary of State, and (b) publicly
funded land as defined in paragraph 22(3) of Schedule 1 to the Academies Act 2010.

“Pupil Premium” means an amount equivalent to the pupil premium as defined in

the School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2013

“Pupil Referral Unit” means any school established in England and maintained by
an LA which is specially organised to provide education for children falling within
section 19(1) of the Education Act 1996.

Any reference to “Secretary of State” includes a reference to the ESFA acting on
the Secretary of State’s behalf.

“Secretary of State’s consent” means the Secretary of State’s specific, prior written

consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

“SEN” means Special Educational Needs and the expressions “special educational
needs” and “special educational provision” have the meaning set out in sections
20(1) and 21(2) of the Children and Families Act 2014.

“Start-up Period” has the meaning as defined in the relevant Supplemental

Agreement.

“Supplemental Agreement” means an agreement supplemental to this Agreement
for any Academy which the Academy Trust agrees to establish and maintain and the
Secretary of State agrees to fund, which is substantially in the form of the
supplemental funding agreement entered into by both parties at the time that this
Agreement is signed.

“Teaching Staff” means teachers and the principal or head teacher employed at the

Academy.
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“Termination Notice” means a notice sent by the Secretary of State to the Academy
Trust, terminating this Agreement and each Supplemental Agreement on the date

specified in the notice.

1.5 The Interpretation Act 1978 applies to this Agreement as it applies to an Act of

Parliament.
1.6  Areference in this Agreement to any party or body includes its successors.

1.7  Any words following the terms ‘include’, ‘including’ or ‘in particular’ are by way

of illustration, not limitation.

1.8 Areference in this Agreement to land includes any buildings or structures on
the land.

1.9 Avreference in this Agreement to pupils includes students at a 16-19
Academy.

1.10 Where any legislation, legal requirement or published guidance is referred to,

unless otherwise stated, the following terms should be interpreted as follows:

a) “school” refers to the relevant Mainstream Academy, Alternative
Provision Academy, or Special Academy, and “educational institution”

refers, where the context so admits, to a 16-19 Academy;

b) the “head teacher” may refer to the Academy’s head teacher or

principal;

C) references to the “governing body” or “responsible authorities” will be

taken to refer to the Academy Trust; and

d) references to registered pupils will be treated as references to

registered pupils at the Academy.

1.11 References in this Agreement or any Supplemental Agreement to any named
legislation, legal requirement or published guidance should be taken to

include any amendment to or replacement of it.
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1.12 If any questions arise about how this Agreement should be interpreted, the
answer will be decided by the Secretary of State, after discussion with the

Academy Trust.
General Obligations of the Academy Trust

1.13 In order for the Academy Trust to establish and run independent schools
and/or educational institutions in England, according to the terms of the
Academies Act 2010, and in order for the Secretary of State to make
payments to the Academy Trust, the Academy Trust must meet the conditions
and requirements set out in this Agreement, and in each Supplemental
Agreement for an Academy for which payments are claimed. In particular, the
Academy Trust must ensure the Academies it runs meet the applicable

requirements as follows:

a) for Mainstream Academies, those specified in Section 1A of the
Academies Act 2010;

b) for Alternative Provision Academies, those specified in Section 1C of
the Academies Act 2010;

C) for 16-19 Academies, those specified in Section 1B of the Academies
Act 2010;

d) for Special Academies, those specified in section 1A(2) of the
Academies Act 2010, and:

I the Academy Trust must ensure special educational provision is
made at each of the Special Academies for one or more
categories of SEN. These categories may include, but are not
limited to: Specific Learning Difficulties, Moderate Learning
Difficulties, Severe Learning Difficulties, Profound and Multiple
Learning Difficulties, Behaviour Emotional Social and
Development Needs, Speech Language and Communication
Needs, Autistic Spectrum Disorder, Visual Impairment, Hearing

Impairment, Multi-Sensory Impairment, Physical Disability;

10
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ii. the Academy Trust may not refuse to admit a child whose
statement of SEN names one of the Special Academies on the
sole basis that some, or all, of the child’s SEN do not feature in
the categories referred to in clause 1.13(d)(i) of this agreement.

iii. the Academy Trust must comply with all of the obligations
imposed upon special academies by legislation, and with the
obligations imposed upon the governing bodies of maintained
special schools in Chapter 1 of Part 4 of the Education Act 1996.

iv. the Academy Trust must ensure that each Special Academy’s
website includes details of the arrangements for the admission of
disabled pupils; the steps taken to prevent disabled pupils from
being treated less favourably than other pupils; the facilities
provided to assist access to the Academy by disabled pupils; and
the plan prepared by the Academy Trust under paragraph 3 of
Schedule 10 to the Equality Act 2010. Disabled pupils in this
paragraph mean pupils who are disabled for the purposes of the
Equality Act 2010.

1.14 To the extent that it is compatible with the Academy Trust fulfilling its
charitable purpose of advancing education in the United Kingdom for the
public benefit, the Academy Trust must ensure that each of its Academies is
at the heart of its community, promoting community cohesion and sharing
facilities with other schools and/or other educational institutions and the wider

community.

1.15 The Academy Trust must conduct its Academies within the terms and

requirements of:
a) the Articles;

b) any legislation or legal requirement that applies to academies, including
the Independent School Standards and legislation about meeting the

needs of pupils with SEN and disabilities;

11
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C) the Academies Financial Handbook, as stated in clauses 4.6 to 4.8;

and
d) this Agreement, and any and all Supplemental Agreements.

1.16 The Academy Trust must, as soon as is reasonable, establish an appropriate
mechanism for the receipt and management of donations for the purpose of

its aims as specified in the Articles.

1.17 The Academy Trust must obtain the Secretary of State’s consent before
applying to have an Academy designated as a school with religious character.
The Secretary of State may at his discretion refuse or consent to the Academy

Trust making such an application.

1.18 Unless an Academy operated by the Academy Trust is designated as a school
with a religious character under the Religious Character of Schools
(Designation Procedure) (Independent Schools) (England) Regulations 2003,
it agrees to be bound by the prohibition against discrimination in section 85 of
the Equality Act 2010.

1.19 The Academy Trust is not required to publish information under this
Agreement, or any Supplemental Agreement, if to do so would breach its

obligations under the Data Protection Act 1998.

1.20 The Academy Trust must ensure that its Academies meet the needs of

individual pupils, including pupils with SEN and disabilities.
Governance

1.21 The Academy Trust will be governed by a board comprising the Charity
Trustees of the Academy Trust (the “Board of Charity Trustees”).

1.22 The Board of Charity Trustees must have regard to any Guidance on the

governance of academy trusts.

1.23 The Academy Trust must ensure that it engages with the relevant Local
Governing Body (if any) or representatives of each Academy, and that

arrangements are in place for matters relating to the functioning of each

12
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Academy to be brought to the attention of the Charity Trustees of the

Academy Trust.

The Academy Trust must provide to the Secretary of State the names of all
new or replacement members of the Academy Trust, stating the date of their
appointment and, where applicable, the name of the member they replaced as

soon as is practicable and in any event within 14 days of their appointment.

The Academy Trust must not appoint any new or replacement members until
it has first informed them, and they have agreed, that their names will be

shared with the Secretary of State to enable him to assess their suitability.

If the Academy Trust establishes and maintains a Free School, it must, in

addition to its obligations under clauses 1.24 and 1.25:

a) provide to the Secretary of State the names of all new or replacement
Charity Trustees of the Academy Trust, stating whether they have been
appointed or elected, the date of their appointment or election and,
where applicable, the name of the Charity Trustees they replaced as
soon as is practicable and in any event within 14 days of their

appointment or election; and

b) not appoint or elect any new or replacement Charity Trustees until it
has first informed them, and they have agreed, that their names will be
shared with the Secretary of State to enable him to assess their
suitability.

The Academy Trust must not amend or remove the provisions in its Articles
relating to the appointment or election or the resignation or removal of Charity
Trustees or members (“the Governance Articles”) without the Secretary of

State’s consent.

Before any change to the Governance Articles is proposed the Academy Trust

must give notice to the Secretary of State of:

a) the proposed amendment or removal; and;
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b) the reason for it.

If the Secretary of State consents to the proposed changes, the Academy
Trust shall approve any changes to the Articles as soon as reasonably
practicable and provide the Secretary of State with a copy of the amended

Articles and the resolution(s) approving them.

RUNNING OF THE ACADEMIES

Length of school day and year

2.1

The length of the school day and year will be the responsibility of the
Academy Trust and for the purpose of this paragraph “school” also means a
16 to 19 Academy.

Teachers and staff

2.2

2.3

2.4

In complying with the Independent School Standards, the Academy Trust
must require enhanced Disclosure and Barring Service (“DBS”) certificates as
appropriate for members of staff, supply staff, members of the Academy
Trust, individual Charity Trustees and the chair of the Board of Charity

Trustees.

The Academy Trust must promptly submit to the Secretary of State, on
request, the information contained in any enhanced DBS certificate that it

receives.

The Academy Trust must designate a staff member at each Academy as
responsible for promoting the educational achievement of registered pupils at
the Academy who are being looked after by an LA, or are no longer looked
after by an LA because of an adoption, special guardianship or child
arrangements order, or because they have been adopted from ‘state care’
outside England and Wales, and in doing so must comply with the law,
regulations and guidance that apply to maintained schools. The Academy
Trust must ensure the designated person undertakes appropriate training and
has regard to any guidance issued by the Secretary of State.
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2.5 Teachers’ pay and conditions of service at the Academies are the

responsibility of the Academy Trust.

2.6  The Academy Trust must ensure that all teachers employed in each Academy
have access to the Teachers’ Pension Scheme and, in so doing, must comply
with the requirements of the scheme and with Fair Deal for staff pensions

guidance published by HM Treasury.

2.7  The Academy Trust must ensure that all affected staff employed in the
Academy other than teachers have access to the Local Government Pension
Scheme in line with that Scheme’s main regulations being the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment)
Regulations 2014. Access to the Scheme must also be in accordance with
HM Treasury’s published guidance on New Fair Deal which sets out how
pensions issues are to be dealt with when staff are compulsorily transferred
from the public sector to independent providers. These requirements don’t
apply if an individual chooses to opt out of the Scheme in line with the

relevant legal provisions.

2.8  Where a member of the teaching staff employed at an Academy applies for a
teaching post at another academy, a maintained school or a further education
institution, the Academy Trust must at the request of the board of governors

or academy trust of that other educational institution:

a) advise in writing whether or not, in the previous two years, there has
been any formal capability considerations or proceedings for that
teacher at the Academy or the Predecessor School;

b) give written details of the concerns which gave rise to any such
consideration of that teacher’s capability, the duration of the
proceedings and their outcome.

School meals

2.9 Subjectto clause 2.12, the Academy Trust must provide school lunches and

free school lunches in accordance with the provisions of sections 512(3) and
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5127B(1) of the Education Act 1996 as if references in sections 512 and
5127B to a local authority were to the Academy Trust and as if references to a

school maintained by a local authority were to any of its Academies.

The Academy Trust must comply with school food standards legislation as if

its Academies were maintained schools.

Where the Academy Trust provides milk to pupils, it must be provided free of
charge to pupils who would be eligible for free milk if they were pupils at a

maintained school.

Clauses 2.9 to 2.11 do not apply to 16-19 Academies. For 16-19 Academies,
the Academy Trust must comply with any Guidance in relation to free meals in

the further education sector, as far as it applies to those Academies.

Pupil Premium

2.13

2.14

For all of its Academies eligible for Pupil Premium, and for each Financial
Year, the Academy Trust must publish, on the Academy’s website,

information about:

a) the amount of Pupil Premium allocation that it will receive during the

Academy Financial Year;
b) what it intends to spend the Pupil Premium allocation on;

C) what it spent its Pupil Premium allocation on in the previous Academy

Financial Year;

d) the impact of the previous year’s Pupil Premium allocation on

educational attainment.

For all of its Academies eligible for Year 7 literacy and numeracy catch-up
premium funding, and for each Academy Financial Year, the Academy Trust
must publish, on the Academy’s website, information about:

a) the amount of Year 7 literacy and numeracy catch-up premium grant

that it will receive during the Academy Financial Year;
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b) what it intends to spend its Year 7 literacy and numeracy catch-up

premium grant on;

C) what it spent its Year 7 literacy and numeracy catch-up premium grant

on in the previous Academy Financial Year;

d) the impact of the previous year’s Year 7 literacy and numeracy catch-
up premium grant on educational attainment, and how that effect was

assessed.

Charging

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

For all its Academies except 16 to 19 Academies, the Academy Trust must
comply with sections 402, 450-457 and 459-462 of the Education Act 1996
with regard to public examinations, charging, providing information, inviting
voluntary contributions and recovering civil debts, as if its Academies were

maintained schools.

There must be no charge for admission to or attendance at any of the
Academies, and the Academies will only charge pupils where the law allows

maintained schools to charge.

Clause 2.16 does not prevent the Academy Trust receiving funds from an LA
or a charity in respect of the admission and attendance of a pupil with SEN to

an Academy.

Notwithstanding clause 2.16, the Academy Trust may charge people who are

not registered pupils at one of its Academies for education or use of facilities.

Where an Academy provides a pupil with board and lodging, the Academy
Trust must not charge the parent of that pupil more than the cost to the
Academy Trust of providing the board and lodging, except as required by the
Fees, Charges and Levies guidance in HM Treasury’s publication ‘Managing

Public Money'.
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Exclusions

2.20 Inrespect of Mainstream Academies, and Special Academies which
admit pupils without statements of SEN, the Academy Trust must, if asked
to by an LA, enter into an agreement which has the effect that where:

a) the Academy admits a pupil who has been permanently excluded from
a maintained school, the Academy itself or another academy with

whom the LA has a similar agreement; or
b) the Academy Trust permanently excludes a pupil from the Academy,

the arrangements for payment will be the same as if the Academy were a
maintained school, under Regulations made under section 47 of the Schools
Standards and Framework Act 1998.

Curriculum

2.21 The curriculum is the responsibility of the Academy Trust.

2.22 The Academy Trust must ensure that the curriculum provided in each
Academy to pupils up to the age of 16 is balanced and broadly based. In
respect of Mainstream, Special Academies, UTCs and Studio Schools, the
Academy Trust must ensure that the curriculum includes English,
mathematics, science and (subject to the provisions in clause 2.V of the
Mainstream academy and free school: supplemental funding agreement),
(subject to the provisions in clause 2.V of the UTC and Studio School
supplemental funding agreement) and (subject to the provisions in clause
2.HH-JJ of the Special School: supplemental funding agreement) religious
education. In respect of Alternative Provision Academies the Academy
Trust must ensure that the curriculum includes English, mathematics and

science.

2.23 The Academy Trust must publish information in relation to the current

curriculum provision at each Academy on that Academy’s website, including:

a) the content of the curriculum;
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b) its approach to the curriculum;

C) if applicable, the GCSE options and other Key Stage 4 qualifications
offered by each Academy and, if applicable, any other qualifications
offered by each Academy;

d) the names of any phonics or reading schemes in operation for Key

Stage 1 if applicable; and

e) how parents (including parents of prospective pupils) and
Commissioners (if applicable) can obtain further information about that

Academy’s curriculum.

2.24 The Academy Trust must not allow any view or theory to be taught as
evidence-based if it is contrary to established scientific or historical evidence
and explanations. This clause applies to all subjects taught at an Academy.

2.25 The Academy Trust must provide for the teaching of evolution as a
comprehensive, coherent and extensively evidenced theory. In respect of any
Alternative Provision Academies and 16-19 Academies, the Academy

Trust must do this where relevant to the curriculum.

2.26 The Academy Trust must ensure the Academy actively promotes the
fundamental British values of democracy, the rule of law, individual liberty,

and mutual respect and tolerance of those with different faiths and beliefs.

2.26A The Academy Trust must ensure the Academy promotes principles that

support equality of opportunity for all.

2.27 The Academy Trust must ensure that careers guidance is provided at each of
its Academies, in accordance with the requirements on maintained schools in
the Education Act 1997.
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Assessment

2.28 The Academy Trust must:

a) ensure that pupils and students at each of its Academies are entered
for examinations, in line with the requirements on maintained schools
in section 402 of the Education Act 1996;

b) comply with the relevant Guidance, as it applies to maintained schools,
in respect of each Mainstream Academy, and each Special
Academy to ensure that pupils take part in assessments, and in
teacher assessments of pupils’ performance; and must do so for each
Alternative Provision Academy unless there are exceptional reasons

to do otherwise;

C) ensure that students at each 16 to 19 Academy take part in
assessments of students’ performance appropriate to the qualifications

offered;

d) report on assessments as the Secretary of State requires, or provide
any information on assessments, on the same basis that maintained

schools are required to provide the information;

e) for all Key Stages, allow monitoring and moderation of the Academy’s

assessment arrangements as required by the Secretary of State.

2.29 Unless specifically approved in writing by the Secretary of State, the Academy
Trust must not use General Annual Grant (GAG) to offer any course of
education or training which leads to a qualification, if that qualification is not
approved by the Secretary of State for the purpose of section 96 of the
Learning and Skills Act 2000.

2.30 Unless informed by the Secretary of State that alternative information must be
published, the Academy Trust must ensure that the following information is
published on the relevant Academy’s website for each Mainstream

Academy, for each Alternative Provision Academy, and where relevant for
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each Special Academy, and in respect of sub-paragraph b) where relevant

for each Studio School:

a)

b)

d)

if applicable, the Academy’s most recent Key Stage 2 results as
published by the Secretary of State in the School Performance Tables:

I. “% achieving Level 4 or above in reading, writing and maths”;

ii.  “% making expected progress in reading”, “% making expected

progress in writing”, and “% making expected progress in maths”;
lii.  in relation to reading, “% achieving Level 5 or above”; and
iv. inrelation to writing, “% achieving Level 5 or above”; and
v. inrelation to maths, “% achieving Level 5 or above”;

if applicable, the Academy’s most recent Key Stage 4 results as
published by the Secretary of State under the following column

headings in the School Performance Tables:

I “% achieving 5 + A* - C GCSEs (or equivalent) including English
and maths GCSEs”;

ii.  “% achieving the English Baccalaureate”; and
iii.  “% of pupils making expected progress”;

information about where and how parents (including parents of
prospective pupils) can access the most recent report about the
Academy published by the Chief Inspector; and

information as to where and how parents (including parents of
prospective pupils) can access the School Performance Tables

published by the Secretary of State.

The Academy Trust must ensure that, in relation to any 16-19 Academies,

any performance information requested by the Secretary of State is published

on the Academy’s website.
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2.32 The Secretary of State may direct any Academy to participate in international

3.

education surveys, under the Education Act 1996, as if it were a maintained

school.

GRANT FUNDING

Recurrent Expenditure Grants

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

The Secretary of State will pay grants towards Recurrent Expenditure, and

may pay grants towards Capital Expenditure, for each Academy.

“Recurrent Expenditure” means any money spent on the establishment,
conduct, administration and maintenance of an Academy which does not fall

within Capital Expenditure.

In respect of Recurrent Expenditure, the Secretary of State will pay General
Annual Grant (“GAG”) and may additionally pay Earmarked Annual Grant

(“EAG”). These are two separate and distinct grants.

Except with the Secretary of State’s consent, the Academy Trust must not
make commitments to spending which will have substantial implications for
future grant. No decision by the Academy Trust will commit the Secretary of

State to paying any particular amount of grant.

Capital Grant

3.5

3.6

The Secretary of State may pay a grant (“Capital Grant”) to the Academy

Trust for the purpose of spending on items of Capital Expenditure.
“Capital Expenditure” means expenditure on:
a) acquiring land and buildings;

b) erecting, enlarging, improving or demolishing any building including
fixed plant, installation, wall, fence or other structure, or any playground

or hard standing;
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installing electrical, mechanical or other services other than necessary

repairs and maintenance due to normal wear and tear;
buying vehicles;

installing and equipping premises with furnishings and equipment, other

than necessary repairs and maintenance due to normal wear and tear,

installing and equipping premises with computers, networking for
computers, operating software and ICT equipment, other than
necessary updates or repairs and maintenance due to normal wear and

tear;

providing and equipping premises, including playing fields and other
facilities for social activities and physical recreation other than

necessary repairs and maintenance due to normal wear and tear,

works of a permanent character other than the purchase or

replacement of minor day-to-day items;

any major repairs or replacements which are specified as capital
expenditure in any grant letter relating to them;

such other items (whether like or unlike any of the foregoing) of a
substantial or enduring nature which the Secretary of State agrees are

capital expenditure for the purposes of this Agreement;

professional fees properly and reasonably incurred in connection with

the provision of any of the above,;

VAT and other taxes payable on any of the above.

Any Capital Grant funding that may be made available to the Academy Trust

will be notified to it by the Secretary of State.

The Academy Trust must spend Capital Grant only on items of Capital

Expenditure approved by the Secretary of State and in accordance with

conditions specified by the Secretary of State. Further, the Academy Trust
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must provide evidence that it has obtained all planning and other consents
required for any proposed building and infrastructure development to be

funded using Capital Grant.

In order to receive payments of Capital Grant, the Academy Trust must
provide supporting invoices and certificates in the format specified by the

Secretary of State.

The Academy Trust must provide an account of Capital Grant received and
associated spending on Capital Expenditure using Capital Grant in the
Academy Trust's financial statements and any financial reports or returns that

the Secretary of State may require.

If in its use of Capital Grant the Academy Trust does not comply with this
Agreement or any of the conditions specified by the Secretary of State, or the
project does not accord with the original specification or has not been
completed, the Secretary of State may at his discretion not make any further
payments of Capital Grant and require the Academy Trust to repay all or part
of the Capital Grant.

General Annual Grant (GAG)

3.12

The Secretary of State will pay GAG to the Academy Trust towards the normal
running costs or capital expenditure of each of its Academies, including:

a) teachers' salaries and related costs (including pension contributions,
full and part-time teaching staff and payments in respect of seconded

teachers);

b) non-teaching staff salaries and related costs (including pension

contributions);
C) employees' expenses;

d) buying, maintaining, repairing and replacing teaching and learning
materials and other educational equipment, including books and
stationery;
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buying, maintaining, repairing and replacing other assets including ICT
equipment and software, sports equipment and laboratory equipment

and materials;
examination fees;

repairs, servicing and maintenance of buildings (including redecoration,
heating, plumbing, lighting etc.); maintenance of grounds (including
boundary fences and walls); insurance; cleaning materials and contract
cleaning; water and sewerage; fuel and light (including electricity and
gas); rents; rates; purchase, maintenance, repairs and replacement of

furniture and fittings;

medical equipment and supplies;

staff development (including in-service training);
curriculum development;

the costs of providing school meals for pupils (including the cost of
providing free school lunches to pupils who are eligible to receive
them), and any discretionary grants to pupils to meet the cost of pupil

support, including support for pupils with SEN or disabilities;
administration; and

establishment expenses and other institutional costs.

GAG for each Academy Financial Year for each Mainstream Academy and

Special Academy will include:

a)

b)

funding equivalent to that which would be received by a maintained
school with similar characteristics, determined by the Secretary of State
and taking account of the number of pupils at the Academy;

funding to cover necessary functions which would be carried out by the

relevant LA if the Academy were a maintained school;
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C) payment of any additional specific grants made available to maintained
schools, where the Academy meets the criteria for those grants, and at

the Secretary of State’s discretion; and

d) funding for any other costs to the Academy which the Secretary of

State considers necessary.

3.14 The Academy Trust must use GAG only for maintaining, carrying on,
managing and developing the Academies in accordance with this Agreement
and the relevant Supplemental Agreement, except where the Secretary of
State has given specific consent for the Academy Trust to use GAG for

another charitable purpose.
3.15 In particular (but without limitation) the Academy Trust must not use GAG for:

a) education and training for adults who are not pupils of the Academy,
other than staff professional development and governance training and

development;
b) nursery provision for which parents are charged a fee;

C) nursery provision to children outside of the relevant Academy’s age

range as stated in the applicable Supplemental Agreement;
d) Children’s Centres;

e) any additional cost of providing sport and leisure facilities for a purpose
not permitted in clause 3.14.

Earmarked Annual Grant (EAG)

3.16 The Secretary of State may pay EAG to the Academy Trust for specific
purposes, agreed between the Secretary of State and the Academy Trust, and
as described in the relevant funding letter. The Academy Trust must spend

EAG only in accordance with that letter.
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3.17 Where the Academy Trust is seeking a specific EAG for any Academy
Financial Year, it must send a letter outlining its proposals and the reasons for

the request to the DfE.
Arrangements for paying GAG and EAG

3.18 Before each Academy Financial Year, the Secretary of State will notify the
Academy Trust of the GAG and EAG amounts in respect of each Academy
which, subject to parliamentary approval, the Secretary of State plans for that
Academy Financial Year and how these have been calculated.

3.19 The amounts of GAG for an Academy Financial Year will be determined
annually by the Secretary of State, and notified to the Academy Trust in a
funding letter sent before the relevant Academy Financial Year begins (the
“Annual Letter of Funding”).

3.20 Amounts of EAG will be notified to the Academy Trust wherever possible in

the Annual Letter of Funding or as soon as is practicable afterwards.

3.21 The Annual Letter of Funding will, as well as stating the grant amounts, set
out how these have been calculated. It will not include grants which cannot be
calculated in time because there is not enough information, or for other
administrative reasons. Any such grants will be notified as soon as

practicable.

3.22 The Secretary of State will pay GAG in monthly instalments on or before first
day of each month (“the relevant month”), to fund the salaries and other
payroll costs of all monthly paid employees and all other costs payable during
the relevant month. The detailed arrangements for payment will be set out in
the Annual Letter of Funding, or an equivalent.

3.23 If GAG or EAG is miscalculated:

a) because of a mistake by the Secretary of State, which leads to an
underpayment to the Academy Trust, the Secretary of State will correct
the underpayment in the same or subsequent Academy Financial

Years;
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b) because the Academy Trust provided incorrect information, which leads
to an underpayment to the Academy Trust, the Secretary of State may
correct the underpayment in the same or subsequent Academy

Financial Years;

C) for any reason which results in an overpayment to the Academy Trust,
the Secretary of State may recover any overpaid grant in the same or
subsequent Academy Financial Years, having considered all the
relevant circumstances and taking into account any representations

from the Academy Trust.

Other relevant funding

3.24. The Academy Trust may receive additional funding from an LA under an

agreement with that LA for the provision of support for pupils with SEN who
require high levels of such support. The Academy Trust must ensure that all

support required under that agreement is provided for those pupils.

4. FINANCIAL AND ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS

General

4.1 In order for the Secretary of State to provide grant funding to the Academy
Trust, the Academy Trust must be fulfilling the financial and reporting
requirements in this Agreement, and any Supplemental Agreements.

4.2 Inits conduct and operation, the Academy Trust must apply financial and
other controls which meet the requirements of regularity, propriety and value
for money.

4.3 The Academy Trust must appoint an accounting officer and must notify the
Secretary of State of that appointment. The Academy Trust must assign to the
accounting officer the responsibilities of the role set out in the Academies
Financial Handbook and HM Treasury’s publication ‘Managing Public Money'.

4.4  The Academy Trust must abide by the requirements of, and have regard to

the guidance for, charities and charity trustees issued by the Charity
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Commission and, in particular, the Charity Commission’s guidance on
‘Protecting Charities from Harm’. Any references in this document which
require charity trustees to report to the Charity Commission should instead be
interpreted as reporting to the body or person appointed as the principal

regulator under the Charities Act 2011.

The Academy Trust must abide by the requirements of the current 16 to 19
Funding Guidance published by the Secretary of State, in respect of any
provision for students who are above compulsory school age until the

academic year in which they reach the age of 19.

If the Secretary of State pays any grant to or on behalf of the Academy Trust,
in respect of any Free Schools that the Academy Trust establishes and
maintains, which includes an amount to cover VAT, the Academy Trust shall,
having paid the VAT, promptly submit a VAT reclaim application to Her
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC). Any failure by the Academy Trust
to submit a VAT reclaim application to HMRC, or to pursue the application
diligently, or to repay any reclaimed amount to the Secretary of State as soon
as reasonably practicable following receipt will be taken into account by the

Secretary of State in:

a) calculating and paying any subsequent grant to the Academy Trust; or

b) adjusting GAG payable to the Academy Trust in subsequent Academy

Financial Years.

Application of the Academies Financial Handbook

4.6

4.7

In relation to the use of grant paid to the Academy Trust by the Secretary of
State, the Academy Trust must follow the requirements of, and have regard to

the guidance in, the Academies Financial Handbook.

The Academy Trust must have adequate insurance cover or opt in to the
Department’s arrangements as set out in the Academies Financial Handbook.
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The Academy Trust must submit information about its finances to the
Secretary of State in accordance with the Academies Financial Handbook, or

as otherwise specified by the Secretary of State.

Budgeting for funds

4.9

4.10

411

The Academy Trust must balance its budget from each Academy Financial
Year to the next. For the avoidance of doubt, this does not prevent the

Academy Trust from:

a) subject to clause 4.14, carrying a surplus from one Academy Financial

Year to the next; or

b) carrying forward from previous Academy Financial Years sufficient
cumulative surpluses on grants from the Secretary of State to meet an
in-year deficit on such grants in a subsequent financial year, in
accordance with clauses 4.14-4.16 and 3.L of the relevant

Supplemental Agreement; or

C) incurring an in-year deficit on funds from sources other than grants
from the Secretary of State in any Academy Financial Year, provided it
does not affect the Academy Trust’s responsibility to ensure that its
Academies balance their respective overall budgets from each

Academy Financial Year to the next.

The Academy Trust may spend or accumulate funds from private sources or
public sources other than grants from the Secretary of State for the benefit of
the Academy Trust as it sees fit. Any surplus from private or public sources

other than grants from the Secretary of State must be separately identified in

the Academy Trust’s accounts.

For clarity, and in accordance with the intent of parity of funding with LA
maintained schools, in circumstances where a Predecessor School had a
deficit balance and the DfE has settled this with the relevant LA, that amount
will be recovered from the Academy Trust's GAG over a period not normally
exceeding 3 years (unless the Secretary of State’s in his discretion decides

otherwise) after the Academy opened.
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4.12 The Academy Trust's budget must be approved for each Academy Financial

Year by the Board of Charity Trustees.

4.13 The approved budget must be submitted to the Secretary of State in a form,
and by a date, to be notified by the Secretary of State.

Carrying forward of funds

4.14 At the end of any Academy Financial Year the Academy Trust may carry
forward unspent GAG from previous Academy Financial Years without limit
(unless a limit is specified in the Academies Financial Handbook, or otherwise

as specified in writing by the Secretary of State, in which case that limit will

apply).

4.15 The Academy Trust must use any GAG carried forward only for purposes of
GAG as set out in this agreement, or otherwise as specified in the Academies

Financial Handbook or in writing by the Secretary of State.

4.16 Any additional grant provided for an Academy’s Start-Up Period may be
carried forward, without limitation or deduction, until the Start-Up Period ends.

4.17 Any unspent grant not allowed to be carried forward under clauses 4.14-4.16
and 3.L of the relevant Supplemental Agreement may be taken into account in

the payment of subsequent grant.
Annual accounts and audit

4.18 The Academy Trust must prepare and file with Companies House the annual

reports and accounts required by the Companies Act 2006.

4.19 In addition, the Academy Trust must prepare its annual reports and accounts

for each Academy Financial Year:

a) in accordance with the Charity Commission’s ‘Accounting and
Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice’, as if the

Academy Trust was a registered charity; and

b) otherwise as the Secretary of State directs.
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The Academy Trust’s accounts must be audited annually by independent

auditors appointed in line with the Academies Financial Handbook.

The accounts must carry an audit report stating whether, in the opinion of the
auditors, the accounts show a true and fair view of the Academy Trust’s
affairs. The accounts must also be supported by such other audit reports,
relating to the use of grants and other matters, as the Secretary of State

directs.

The Academy Trust’s annual report must include the names of all members of

the Academy Trust who served during the year.

The Academy Trust’s annual reports and accounts, and the auditor’s reports,
must be submitted to the Secretary of State by 31 December each Academy
Financial Year, or as otherwise specified by the Secretary of State. The
Academy Trust must publish on its website its annual reports and accounts,
current memorandum of association, Articles and Funding Agreement and the
names of its Charity Trustees and members. The Secretary of State may also
publish the Academy Trust’s annual reports and accounts, and the audit

report, as he sees fit.

Keeping financial records

4.24

The Academy Trust must keep proper accounting records. Statements of
income and expenditure, statements of cash flow and balance sheets must be

produced in such form and frequency as the Secretary of State directs.

Access to financial records

4.25

The books of accounts and all relevant records, files and reports of the
Academy Trust, including those relating to financial controls, must be open at
all reasonable times to officials of the DfE and the National Audit Office, and
to their agents and contractors, for inspection or carrying out value for money
studies. The Academy Trust must give those officials and contractors
reasonable assistance with their enquiries. For the purposes of this clause
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‘relevant’ means in any way relevant to the provision and use of grants

provided by the Secretary of State under this Agreement.

The Secretary of State may, at his expense, instruct auditors to report to him
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Academy Trust’s accounting
systems and internal controls to standards determined by the Secretary of
State, and to make recommendations for improving the Academy Trust’'s

financial management.

Acquiring and disposing of Publicly Funded Assets

4.27

4.28

In relation to Publicly Funded Assets, the Academy Trust must not, without the

Secretary of State’s consent:

a) acquire or dispose of freehold land; or

b) take up or grant a leasehold of land; or

C) dispose of any other class of capital assets.

except as expressly permitted in the Academies Financial Handbook, and

subject to Part 3 of Schedule 1 to the Academies Act 2010.

The Academy Trust must give the Secretary of State 30 days’ notice of its
intention to take any of the actions in clause 4.27 (a) — (c) regardless of

whether the Secretary of State’s consent is required.

Retention of proceeds from the disposal of capital assets

4.29

4.30

Except as permitted in the Academies Financial Handbook, if the Academy
Trust sells capital assets which were acquired or enhanced wholly or partly
using payments made by or on behalf of HM Government the Academy Trust
must pay to the Secretary of State, at his request, an amount of the sale
proceeds equivalent to the proportion of the original cost of the acquisition or

enhancement which was met by or on behalf of HM Government.

If the Academy Trust sells a capital asset which was transferred to it for no or

nominal consideration from an LA, a Predecessor School or a Predecessor
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School’s foundation, the Academy Trust must, if required by the Secretary of
State, pay all or part of the sale proceeds to the LA or to the Secretary of
State, taking into account the amount of the proceeds to be reinvested by the

Academy Trust.

Transactions outside the usual planned range

431

4.32

4.33

In relation to Publicly Funded Assets, the Academy Trust must not, without the

Secretary of State’s consent:

a) give any guarantees, indemnities or letters of comfort, except such as

are given in normal contractual relations;
b) write off any debts or liabilities owed to it; or

C) offer to make any special payments as defined in HM Treasury’s
publication ‘Managing Public Money’ (including ex gratia payments,

staff severance payments and compensation payments)

if the value of those transactions would be above any threshold specified in

the Academies Financial Handbook.

The Academy Trust must give the Secretary of State 30 days’ notice (or such
shorter period as the Secretary of State may agree) of its intention to take any
of the actions in clause 4.31 (a) — (c) regardless of whether the Secretary of

State’s consent is required.

The Academy Trust must promptly notify the Secretary of State of any loss
arising from suspected theft or fraud in line with the requirements in the
Academies Financial Handbook, or otherwise specified by the Secretary of
State.

Borrowing

4.34

Except as permitted in the Academies Financial Handbook, the Academy
Trust must not borrow against Publicly Funded Assets, or so as to put Publicly

Funded Assets at risk, without the Secretary of State’s consent.
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COMPLAINTS

With regards to a Mainstream Academy, a Special Academy an Alternative
Provision Academy or a 16-19 Academy, if a complaint is made about
matters arising wholly or partly before the Academy opened, and all or part of
that complaint was investigated by the Local Government Ombudsman under
Part Il of the Local Government Act 1974 (“Part IlI”), or could have been
investigated under Part Il if the Predecessor School/Pupil Referral Unit had

remained a maintained school/Pupil Referral Unit, the Academy Trust:

a) must abide by the provisions of Part Il as if the Academy were a

maintained school/Pupil Referral Unit;

b) agrees that the Secretary of State will have the power to investigate the
subject of the complaint as if it had taken place after the Academy

opened; and

C) must act in accordance with any recommendation from the Secretary of
State as if that recommendation had been made under Part Il and the

Academy were a maintained school/Pupil Referral Unit.

With regards to a Mainstream Academy, a Special Academy or a 16-19
Academy, if the Secretary of State could have given an order or a direction
under section 496 or 497 of the Education Act 1996 to the governing body of
the Predecessor School and that order or direction related to matters
occurring within the 12 months immediately before the Academy opened, the

Academy Trust:

a) agrees that the Secretary of State may give orders or directions to the
Academy Trust as though the Academy were a maintained school and
sections 496 and 497 applied to the governing body of that maintained

school; and

b) must act in accordance with any such order or direction from the

Secretary of State.
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If at the time of the opening of any Mainstream Academy, Special
Academy, Alternative Provision Academy or 16-19 Academy the
investigation of a complaint made to the governing body of the Predecessor
School/Pupil Referral Unit has not yet been completed, the Academy Trust
must continue to investigate that complaint in accordance with the complaints

procedures established by that governing body.

If a complaint is made to the Academy Trust about matters arising in whole or
in part during the 12 months prior to the opening of any Mainstream
Academy, any Special Academy any Alternative Provision Academy or
any 16-19 Academy the Academy Trust agrees to investigate that complaint

as if the matter complained of had taken place after the Academy opened.

TERMINATION

This Agreement will commence on the date of delivery and continue until
terminated in accordance with clauses 6.2-6.7, or until all Supplemental

Agreements have terminated.

Termination by either party

6.2

The Secretary of State may serve a Termination Notice if any of the following
events occur, or if he considers that there is a serious risk that any of them

may occur:

a) the Academy Trust calls a formal or informal meeting of its creditors or
enters into any formal or informal composition or arrangement with its

creditors; or

b) the Academy Trust proposes a voluntary arrangement within Section 1

of the Insolvency Act 1986 (as amended); or

C) the Academy Trust is unable to pay its debts within the meaning of
Section 123 of the Insolvency Act 1986 provided that, for the purposes
of this clause, Section 123 (1)(a) of the Insolvency Act 1986 will have
effect as if £10,000 was substituted for £750. The Academy Trust will

not be deemed unable to pay its debts for the purposes of this clause if
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d)

f)

9)
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any such demand as is mentioned in the said Section is being

contested in good faith by the Academy Trust; or

the Academy Trust has a receiver and manager (except those
appointed by the Charity Commission under the Charities Act 2011),
administrator or administrative receiver appointed over all or part of its

undertakings, assets or income; or

any distraint, execution or other process is levied or enforced on any of
the Academy Trust’s property and is not paid out, withdrawn or

discharged within 15 business days; or
the Academy Trust has passed a resolution for its winding up; or

an order is made for the winding up or administration of the Academy
Trust.

The Academy Trust must promptly notify the Secretary of State, with an

explanation of the circumstances, after receiving any petition which may result

in an order for its winding up or administration.

If

a)

b)

any Charity Trustee or member of the Academy Trust refuses to
consent to any checks required under this Agreement, or as otherwise

requested by the Secretary of State; or

the Secretary of State determines that any Charity Trustee or member

of the Academy Trust is unsuitable,

the Secretary of State may:

I direct the Academy Trust to ensure that the Charity Trustee or
member resigns or is removed within 42 days, failing which the

Secretary of State may serve a Termination Notice; or

il serve a Termination Notice.
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For the purposes of clause 6.4 a Charity Trustee or member of the Academy

Trust will be “unsuitable” if that Charity Trustee or member:

a)
b)
c)

d)

has been convicted of an offence;
has been given a caution in respect of an offence;
is subject to a relevant finding in respect of an offence; or

has engaged in relevant conduct,

as a result of which, the Secretary of State considers that that Charity Trustee

or member is unsuitable to take part in the management of the Academies.

For the purposes of clause 6.5:

a)

b)

a Charity Trustee or member of the Academy Trust will be subject to a

“relevant finding” in respect of an offence if:

I. that Charity Trustee or member has been found not guilty of the

offence by reason of insanity;

ii.  that Charity Trustee or member has been found to be under a
disability and to have done the act charged against them in
respect of the offence; or

iii. a court outside the United Kingdom has made a finding equivalent

to that described in paragraphs (i) and (ii) above.

“relevant conduct” is conduct by a Charity Trustee or member of the
Academy Trust which is:

I aimed at undermining the fundamental British values of
democracy, the rule of law, individual liberty and mutual respect

and tolerance of those with different faiths and beliefs; or

ii.  found to be in breach of professional standards by a professional
body; or
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iii.  so inappropriate that, in the opinion of the Secretary of State, it
makes that Charity Trustee or member unsuitable to take part in

the management of the Academy.

Change of Control of the Academy Trust

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

7.

The Secretary of State may at any time, subject to clause 6.8, serve a

Termination Notice if there is a change:
a) in the Control of the Academy Trust; or
b) in the Control of a legal entity that Controls the Academy Trust.

Where a person (‘P’) is a member or director of a body corporate (as a
corporation sole or otherwise) by virtue of an office, no change of Control

arises merely by P’s successor becoming a member or director in P’s place.

The Academy Trust must promptly notify the Secretary of State if there is a
proposed or actual change of Control of the Academy Trust, or of a legal

entity that Controls the Academy Trust.

When notifying the Secretary of State further to clause 6.9, the Academy
Trust must seek his agreement that, if he is satisfied with the change of
Control, he will not exercise his right to terminate this Agreement further to

clause 6.7.

OTHER CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

Information

7.1

7.2

The Academy Trust must promptly provide to the Secretary of State any
information about the Academy Trust, or any of its Academies, which he
regards as necessary to fulfil his role and responsibilities.

The Secretary of State will give the Academy Trust any information it

reasonably requires of him for the running of its Academies.
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Access by the Secretary of State's Officers

7.3

7.4

7.5

The Academy Trust must allow DfE officials to enter any of its Academies at
any reasonable time. All records, files and reports relating to the running of
each Academy must be available to them at any reasonable time. Two DfE
officials may attend and speak at any meetings of each Academy’s Local
Governing Body, of the Academy Trust’s Board of Charity Trustees or any
other meetings of the Charity Trustees of the Academy Trust, but will
withdraw from any discussion of an Academy’s or the Academy Trust’'s
relationship with the Secretary of State or any discussion of bids for funding to

the Secretary of State.

The following documents must be provided to the Secretary of State or any
person nominated by the Secretary of State on request:

a) the agenda for every meeting of the Board of Charity Trustees, any
Local Governing Body or any committee to which the Board of Charity

Trustees delegates any of its functions;

b) the draft minutes of every such meeting, if they have been approved by

the chairman of that meeting;
C) the signed minutes of every such meeting; and
d) any report, document or other paper considered at any such meeting.

The Academy Trust may exclude from items provided under clause 7.4 any

content relating to:

a) a named teacher or other person employed, or proposed to be

employed, at any Academy;,

b) a named pupil or student at, or candidate for admission to, any

Academy; and

C) any matter which the Academy Trust reasonably believes should

remain confidential.
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7.6 A notice or communication given to a party in connection with this Agreement

or any Supplemental Agreement:

a) must be in writing (excluding email, except where agreed in advance)
and in English;
b) must be delivered by hand or sent by pre-paid first-class post or other
next working day delivery service;
C) will be deemed to have been received:
I if delivered by hand, at the time when a delivery receipt is signed
or when the notice is left at the address in paragraph (d), or
ii.  if posted, at 9.00am on the second working day after posting; and
d) must be sent to the party for the attention of the contact and at the
address listed as follows (or to a different contract or address
previously notified to the sending party, the change taking effect five
working days after deemed receipt of the notice):
Name of party Position of Address
contact
Secretary of State Head of Academies Department for
Division Education,
Sanctuary
Buildings, Great
Smith Street,
London, SW1P 3BT
[Academy Trust [Position] [Address]
name]
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Contractual

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

This Academy Trust cannot assign this Agreement.

Failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any right or remedy of the
Secretary of State under this Agreement (including the right to terminate this
Agreement), or a single or partial exercise of such a right or remedy, is not a
waiver of, and does not prevent or restrict any initial or further exercise of, that

or any other right or remedy.

Termination of this Agreement will not affect the accrued rights, remedies,

obligations or liabilities of the parties to this Agreement existing at termination.

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which when executed and delivered will constitute a duplicate original, but all
of which will together constitute the same agreement.

This Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it
or its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or
claims) will be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of
England and Wales, and submitted to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of

England and Wales.
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This Agreement was executed as a Deed on [DATE]

Executed on behalf of the Academy Trust by:

............................. and
Director Director
OF
Company Secretary
OF e,
Witness
Name:
Address:

The Corporate Seal of
THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION

affixed to this deed is authenticated by:

Duly Authorised
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g
Department
for Education

© Crown copyright 2018

You may re-use this document/publication (not including logos) free of charge in any
format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence v2.0. Where
we have identified any third party copyright information you will need to obtain
permission from the copyright holders concerned.

To view this licence:
visit www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/2
email psi@nationalarchives.qgsi.gov.uk

We welcome feedback. If you would like to make any comments about this
publication, please email AFSPD.feedback@education.gov.uk, quoting the title of
this document. Specific project queries should be sent to the allocated project
lead/lead contact.

About this publication:
enquiries www.education.gov.uk/contactus
download www.gov.uk/government/publications

Reference: DFE-00438-2014

Follow us on Twitter: H Like us on Facebook:
@educationgovuk facebook.com/educationgovuk
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ODST Members, Main Board and Committee membership

Members

The Right Revd Alan Wilson, Bishop of Buckingham

The Revd Mary Ann Harwood

The Diocesan Board of Education acting corporately by hand of one of its Directors

Kathy Winrow

* Chair
ODST, Main | Finance | Pay and Ethos & Education Audit Executive
Board Personnel Governance Quality,
Standards &
Impact
* Kathy |*SirClive| Joanna *Brendan *Kathy * Sarah Kathy
. . R *
Winrow Booth Moriarty Clover Winrow Appleby Winrow
Brendan Anne Stephen Priscilla Anne Dellar Sir Clive Brendan
Clover (Vice | Dellar Barber Chadwick Booth Clover
Chair)
Stephen Kathy | Sir Clive Booth Anne Jo Fageant Alison Sir Clive Booth
Barber Winrow Dellar Jestico
Sir Clive Booth| Chris Anne Chris Wheaton
Wheaton| Dellar
Tony Wilson Kathy Winrow Paul Sanderson
Priscilla
Chadwick
Anne Dellar
Jo Fageant
Bishop Colin
Fletcher
Joanna

Moriarty




Chris

N

Wheaton
Paul
Sanderson
Associate |Catherine Ben Williams Linda Hull, HT Liz Tansley
Members Jones Kldmore End
Martin Christian
York McGuinness, HT
Leafield
In attendance
lan Elkington | Madhu Sharon Mullins/ |Sharon Mullins/| Anne Dellar
— Deputy CEO| Richards Mark Jones lan Elkington lan Elkington
Madhu Madhu
Richards - Richards
Finance
Director

Mark Jones HR
Adviser

Sharon Mullins
— School
Improvement

Susan Newell -
Legal

Estates, Health &

Safety

Stephen Barber*

Anne Dellar

Sarah Rodda —
Associate Member




Victoria Woods —
Associate Member, HT
St Mary’s Banbury

In attendance:

Anne Davey CEO

Mike Bingham —
Operations Manager
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Director Term of office start Term of office end
Stephen Barber April 2018 April 2022

Sir Clive Booth October 2020 October 2024
Brendan Clover October 2020 October 2024
Priscilla Chadwick October 2020 October 2024
Jo Fageant April 2018 April 2022
Anne Davey July 2012 NA

Kathy Winrow October 2020 October 2024
Bishop Colin Fletcher October 2020 October 2024
Joanna Moriarty January 2018 January 2022
Chris Wheaton April 2018 April 2022
Tony Wilson January 2019 January 2023
Paul Sanderson May 2019 May 2023

Associate/Independent Members

Sarah Appleby

Linda Hull

Alison Jesticoe

Catherine Jones

Christian McGuinness

Sarah Rodda

Ben Williams

Martin York

Liz Tansley

Victoria Woods
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Register of Business and other interests of the Trustees/Members of the Board and Committees
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Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

declared on 14t November 2019

Trustee or Member
(incl

¢ Full name/title

¢ Nationality

¢ Appointing body

Relevant business and other
interests (incl other
schools/Trusts) to include:

¢ Name of organisation
e Nature of business

Other educational
establishments governed
(ie Trustee/Board/LGB
member elsewhere)

Relationships to include those of
your:

. spouses
. partners
. relatives and of

Date declared

[ODST] e Nature of interest their Trustee/Board/LGB
e Date appointed, if membership elsewhere; their
known) employment/business
related interests
Bishop Colin Fletcher Governor Cokethorpe School Cokethorpe School 03/09/2019
British Member Diocesan Board of
OoDST Finance
October 2016 Member Diocesan Board of
Education
Chair of Trustees Bible Reading
Fellowship
Trustee Creation Theatre
Sir Clive Booth Oxford Civic Society College of Occupational Mrs G M Booth 15/10/2019

British
ODST
July 2016

Charity
Hon President

BBOWT
Wildlife conservation
Hon Chairman to Oct 2017

Therapists
Professional body
Hon Vice President

(spouse)
Oxford CAB
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Christopher Courtenay Honorary Treasurer of the The Hendreds School Eliza Wheaton (spouse) 14/06/2019
Wheaton Society for the Protection of Foundation Governor, Governor, Our Lady’s Abingdon
British Ancient Buildings (SPAB) Chair of LGB and Chair of school
3@ March 2018 Finance committee
Joanna Moriarty Employment — Green Park lain Adams (spouse) 01/11/2019
British Executive Search, recruitment Eucodia (employer)
OoDST
January 2018 Sandford St Martin Trust Community Savings and Loan

Charity — religious broadcasting (Berkshire Credit Union Ltd)

Trustee Director

Feed the Minds

NGO

Trustee

ODBE elected member
Stephen Barber Mary Hoffman (spouse) 25/09/2019
British The Greystones Press ' Fellow Director of The
ODST S|.11all independent publisher Greystones Press
March 2018 Director
Tony Wilson Diocesan Director of Education Diocesan Board of 02/01/2019
British Education
ODST TJ Education Ltd - employee
January 2019 Trustee — Oxford

Diocesan Bucks Schools
Trust

Dr Priscilla Chadwick RSAcademics consultant Governor at Westminster 17/10/2019

British
ODST
October 2019

School, Harris
Westminster School,
Bishop Gilpin School, Gold
Standard Charitable Trust
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Kathy Winrow General Synod—House of Laity DBE Spouse (priest and associate 24/09/2019
British Area Dean in Oxford Diocese)

ODST

October 2019

Josephine Elizabeth JEF Consultancy Associate governor of St 15/08/2019
Fageant SIAMS inspector training Nicolas CE Junior

British Global Neighbours Award School, Newbury

ODST Assessor

April 2018

Canon Brendan David Senior Provost at Woodard AESfG 15/10/2019
Clover Schools Governor

British Alderley Edge School for Girls

ODST Education

October 2019 Governor

Mrs Jacqueline Anne Dellar Howard Dellar, husband: 14/11/19

British
ODST
June 2012

Lee Bolton Monier
Williams Solicitors —
Partner

Lee Bolton and Lee
Nominees Ltd — Director
Laces Educational —
Director The Weald
Foundation — Secretary
MowgliFoundation —
Secretary

OREF Ltd - Secretary and
Director

The Joshua Watson Trust —
Secretary

The Arbory Trust — Director
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Anglo Catholic Future —
Director

Mowgli

Mentoring Ltd

Secretary

James Percy Foundation -
Secretary

Secretary of the Archbishop
of Canterbury's Charitable
Foundation

Secretary of the
Bletchingdon Community
Foundation Secretary of the
Friendly Hand

Non company trusteeships:

Chair and trustee of the St
Mary Magdalen Oxford
Development and Restoration
Trust

Chair of the Bletchington
Charity Chair of Bishopsland
Educational Trust

Trustee of the

Ozanne Foundation

Registrar of:

The Archbishop of Canterbury's
Faculty Office, Guildford
Diocesan Registry, Hereford
Diocesan Registry, Ely Diocesan
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Registry, Liverpool Diocesan
Registry and Deputy Registrar
of Lincoln Diocesan Registry

Paul Sanderson Governor — Beachborough 29/04/2019
British School

May 2019

Associate Committee

Members

Linda Hull Headteacher Kidmore End Mr Andrew James Hull (spouse) | 21/08/2019
British Primary School Governor at St John’s Primary

ODST School, Wallingford

March 2018 Actuary at Prudential UK

Ben Williams Earthwatch Europe - Delivery of Deddington Primary School — | Alexandra Williams (spouse) Muddy | 15/08/2018
British environmental services, including Governor and Chair (ODST Feet Training — provider of forest

ODST funded education initiatives to local | Academy) school and outdoor learning

April 2018 schools training and consultancy services.

Christian McGuinness Headteacher Leafield Primary Foundation Governor St John | Spouse: teacher at Bartholomew 16/09/2019
British School the Evangelist Primary Eynsham Partnership Academy

ODST School, Carterton

March 2018

Sarah Helen Appleby River Learning Trust Finance MAT 24/09/2019

Finance Director

PTPG Ltd window manufacturer
shareholder
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Applebee Green Ltd — dormant
company - Director and
shareholder

Catherine Jones Foundation Governor at St 03/10/2019
British Christopher’s
ODST Langford (ODST) Primary
2015 School
Martin York Foundation Governor and | Mrs Gillian York (spouse) 19/09/2019
British Chair Officer Administrator (p/t)
ODST Tackley C of E Primary
April 2018 School
Sarah Rodda Hemdean People Ltd Kidmore End CE School — Matthew Rodda (spouse) 16/09/2019
British HR & training consultancy Chair of Governors Member of Parliament for Reading
ODST Owner East
January 2019
Lattitude Global Volunteering
Youth charity
Trustee
Liz Tansley 30/09/2019
British
ODST
January 2019
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